IME Medical Services with Preferred Drug List Questions and Answers

MED-04-034

1. Section 3.1.1, Page 22, Staffing Requirements:

This section indicates that the key “personnel must be employed by or committed to join the bidder’s organization by the beginning of the contract start date.”

a. Does the contract start date refer to April 15, 2004, the beginning of operations phase (June 03, 2005) or some other date?

May 1, 2004

b. Are letters of commitment from key personnel required to be submitted along with technical proposal?

Yes

2. Section 3.1.1.1, Page 23, Key Personnel to be Named:

“For any individual for whom a resume is submitted, the percent of time to be dedicated to the Iowa MMIS must be indicated.”

Should this indicate percent of time to be dedicated to the Medical Services component of the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise?

Yes, Medical Services component

3. Section 3.2.2.2.4.1, Page 56, Medical Support, General Medical Support, Function #5:

“The Medical Services contractor needs to provide DHS with the names and specialties of all consultants and notify DHS of changes to the roster.”

Does the list need to be included in the technical proposal?

No

4. Section 3.2.2.2.4.1, Page 57, Medical Support, General Medical Support, Function #9:

“Certify new outpatient programs for appropriateness of Medicaid coverage and make recommendations to DHS regarding appropriateness of new programs; determine criteria to be used regarding coverage for new programs.”

Does this mean the contractor will work with providers to bring new programs together and create outcome measures?

No, the contractor will use DHS criteria to certify new programs.  However, the bidder may suggest any changes that would improve the certification process.  The criteria for participation in Medicaid can be found in provider manuals and are consistent with Iowa Administrative Code.

5. Section 3.2.2.3, Page 59, Disease Management, Paragraph 3 and Section 3.2.2.3.2, Page 60, Interfaces:

“The Medical Services contractor will be required to develop a limited disease management protocol for non-HMO members, for presentation and approval by DHS”. “The disease management task will require access to information from the MMIS claims and encounter history files, probably through the data warehouse, plus enrollment information for HMO and MediPass members.”

Please clarify the Medicaid members who are to be included in the disease management program.

All Medicaid recipients except those enrolled in medical HMOs may be considered eligible for inclusion into the pilot programs.

6. Section 3.2.2.7, Page 78 and Section 3.2.2.7.4, Page 81, Prior Authorization, Contractor Responsibilities:

“The PA system supports the business operations of the Medical Services contractor related to prior authorizations, which includes processing prior medical pharmacy and dental.” And “The Medical Services contractor is responsible for processing the prior authorizations for the following types of services medical services for the following types of services:  medical services, psychological services, pharmacy services, dental, and TCM.”

a. Please clarify which of the following types of services the Medical Contractor will be responsible for processing prior authorization:  medical, pharmacy, dental, psychological, and/or targeted case management.

Medical, pharmacy, dental and targeted case management.

b. If the Medical Services Contractor is responsible for prior authorization for Targeted Case Management (TCM), what will the role of the contractor be?

See Amendment 1 to RFP MED-04-034, Section 3.2.2.7.4

7. Section 3.2.2.7.4.1, Page 82, Prior Authorizations, Function #10:

“Produce and mail a Decision Notice to the member for modified prior authorizations denied ambulance claims.”

Please clarify the PA process for ambulance claims.

Ambulance services do not require prior authorization.  The language indicated that NODs will be sent for modified prior authorizations AND denied ambulance claims.  These are separate and distinct issues.

8. Section 3.2.2.8.4, Page 90, Quality of Care, Contractor Responsibilities:

“Performing hotline and quality assurance/utilization review (QA/UR).” & “Ensuring that providers are adequately trained and understand all UR/QA systems, grievance procedures, and grievance resolution.”

a. Please clarify the function of the hotline.

In the context of this section, the intent is not to have the contractor maintain a hotline, but rather, to ascertain if the contracted HMOs are meeting performance measures or DHS expectations regarding their hotline requirements.

b. Is the Medical Service Contractor expected to perform these activities or evaluate the HMO’s performance of these activities?

See response to 8(a), above.  The contractor will be required to evaluate the performance of HMO required activities and suggest to the Department whether additional training is necessary or if the HMOs have met their requirements for adequate provider panel training.

c. What types of utilization review and quality assurance will the contractor be responsible for performing for HMO & MediPass providers?

The bidder should be prepared to verify the adequacy of the contracted panel members when directed to do so by the Department.  All components required by the balanced budget act of 1997 as they pertain to managed care and rules that became effective August 14, 2003.  There are significant issues that must be addressed and the bidder is encouraged to review them.

d. At what stage of the HMO & MediPass grievance process will the contractor be expected to become involved in the resolution?
The contractor will assist the Department in gathering information relative to any grievance and may, in fact, assist any recipient or provider who contacts the contractor in resolving any issue within the contractor’s purview as approved by the Department.

9. Section 3.2.2.10.4, Page 96, Lock-In Contractor, Responsibilities, Function #1:

“Using SURS reports, identify members for the lock-in program.”

Are the SURS reports available as electronic files that an automated, customized computer program can interrogate in order to identify members for the RHEP/Lock-in program?

IFMC provides lock-in data monthly via hardcopy correspondence.  This is being automated.  CSR is in development.

10. Section 3.2.2.10.4, Page 96, Lock-In Contractor, Responsibilities, Function #2 and Function #13:

“For members identified for Lock-In, set up a case in the Workflow Process Management System and send a medical alert letter to the member notifying the member of the problem.” And “Log all Lock-In program activity in the Workflow Process Management System, including the type of activity and the date the activity occurred.”

Is the contractor expected to do all of its RHEP/Lock-In work only in the Workflow Process Management System?  Or, as an alternative to or in addition to the Workflow Process Management System, can the contractor also install its own RHEP/Lock-In system to run on one of DHS’s platforms described in Attachment L, System Architecture, Hardware, and Software Environment?

See Section 6.16.1 – recommendations can be made to the Department.

11. Section 3.2.2.11, Page 102, Preferred Drug List (PDL) and Supplemental Rebate Program:

“The objectives of the Preferred Drug List and Supplemental Rebate programs?”

a. Does the Department have any existing supplemental rebate agreements with drug manufacturers?   NO   If yes, are you able to release any information were we to sign a confidentiality agreement?  N/A
b. How will programming changes/system requests involving the POS vendor be handled?

Change orders will be developed by the contractor, approved by the State and the State will provide to the POS contractor.

c. What are the performance criteria, including turnaround times, for such requests?

Request responses need to be turnaround timely, however each task may have different turnaround times as required by the Department.

d. How flexible are you expecting the POS vendor to be in regards to PDL requests such as grandfathering and step therapy?

Section 5.3.2.3.4 of MED-04-015 under #4 states the POS Contractor must accept DHS approved updates to the PDL and this would include grandfathering and/or step therapy.

12. Section 3.2.2.11.4, Page 105 through 106, Preferred Drug List (PDL) and Supplemental Rebate Program, Contractor Responsibilities, Function #2:

“Provide the following services for design, development, implementation and maintenance of the Preferred Drug List (PDL).  The contractor shall.”

What frequency is expected in regards to participation for each of the bullets in this subsection?  We are to bid a fixed price, so having a clear understanding of attendance and participation expectations would be helpful.

Bullets 1-3 are self-explanatory; bullets 4-12 are policy issues to be implemented within the PDL program and bullet 13 refers to ongoing review, which is necessary on a regular basis for such a program.  The Contractor may suggest in the work plan the recommended frequency of meetings for the P&T Committee once the PDL is established.  The State felt this would be quarterly once the PDL is in place.

13. Section 3.2.2.11.4, Page 106 through 107, Preferred Drug List (PDL) and Supplemental Rebate Program, Contractor Responsibilities, Function #4:

“provide administrative support to the P&T Committee to develop, implement, administer and maintain the PDL and prior authorization.  The contractor shall.”

During the implementation period, it may be necessary to have several consecutive P&T meetings.  Will this be permissible?

Yes and expected.

14. Section 3.2.2.11.4, Page 108, Preferred Drug List (PDL) and Supplemental Rebate Program, Contractor Responsibilities, Function #5:

“Provide the following Supplemental Drug Rebate Services.”

The last bullet on this page refers to providing rebate-billing data.  This sounds like the bidder is responsible for creating the bill.  Who is responsible for receiving, collecting, and tracking payment from the manufacturers?  There is no mention of billing in the performance standards (3.2.2.11.7).

The Pharmacy Point of Sale (POS ) Contractor is responsible for invoicing manufacturers for the Federal Rebates as well as the Supplemental Rebates.  While the POS Contractor has information on the total units paid for by NDC during a rebate period they would need the Supplemental Rebate amount negotiated by the Medical Services Contractor for each NDC and this would need to be supplied by the Medical Services Contractor.

15. Section 3.1.1.1

Page 23:  Please define personal references:  DHS reserves the right to check additional personnel references, at its options.

References in relationship to professional capacity.

Page 25:  Please define “in any other capacity”: May not serve in any other capacity.

Personnel must be assigned to the IME full-time.

16. Section 3.1.13 and 3.2.14

P. 51 and 53 – Given the State’s desire to implement coordinated activities between vendors, will the State hold a vendor harmless if performance standards are not met as a result of another vendor’s failure to adequately perform and or share information?

P. 27 – Does the term “medical professional staff” also include clinical staff (nurses) and physician extenders (mid-wives, physician assistants and advanced registered nurse practitioners)?

Yes, such providers must be licensed in the State of Iowa if they are performing in that capacity in the state.

17. Section 3.2.2.27

P. 59 – Performance Standard #3:  Given the federal statutory requirement for 30 days response on appeals, would the State consider amending the 10 day requirement to 30 days?

No, this is the informational approval process.

18. Section 3.2.22.3.7

P. 62 – Will the State take into consideration documented non-compliance by enrollees identified for disease management and adjust the results of the performance standard accordingly?

No, the contractor is expected to develop a plan to encourage enrollment and compliance by enrollees to programmatic standards.  The contractor must address the challenges associated with the development and implementation of such a program.

19. Section 3.2.2.11.8.3

P. 111 – Please provide clarification as to the State responsibility supporting the requirements of this section in that in Section 3.1.2.2.1 it is the State’s responsibility to provide phones and fax machines.  Therefore, has the State committed to purchase of a phone system that will support automated reporting supporting the performance standards?

Yes

20.  Section 3.1.4.1.2 and 3.2.2.1, page 31-32 and page 54, Planning Task/General Start Up Activities

“The State’s responsibility to provide responses to policy questions and the contractor’s responsibility to assure that Iowa Medicaid policy reflects current medical policy reflects current medical practice in the State” (as well as other references to policy development throughout the RFP).

Are the State’s policies regarding the scope of work within this RFP up to date or are policy revisions expected prior to implementation of any service requested in the RFP?  If so, please specify the services that will be affected by policy changes and when these changes will be effective.

Yes, the policies can be found in the state administrative rules.

21. Section 3.2.2.2.4.1, page 56, General Medical Support, #5

“Twenty-seven areas of professional service represented”

Must all of these specialists be licensed (if applicable) and located in Iowa or does a national network of medical specialists representative of the 27 areas fulfill the requirement?

Expertise specific to Iowa Medicaid is required.  These should be Iowa practitioners but exceptions may be requested on a case by case basis.  However, the bidder should be prepared to recruit and retain Iowa providers.

22. Section 3.2.2.2.4.1, page 57, General Medical Support, #6

“Requirement for medical/professional 1 staff or consultants to attend appeal hearings and provide expert testimony. In most cases our physicians are able to attend fair hearings and provide expert testimony via telephonic conference connections.”

Does DHS agree that this approach fulfills the requirements set forth in this section of the RFP?

Yes, in most cases.

23. Section 3.2.2.5.4, page 71, Enhanced Primary Care Case Management:

“Contractor responsibilities #4 and 5”

Do the requirements to provide professional medical staff to perform case management and prepare care plans indicate a role of the contractor to identify network physicians to function as case managers or is the expectation that the Medical Service Contractor utilize staff will perform these functions?

The Medical Services contractor is expected to work in concert with current primary care case managers or other practitioners to effect positive outcomes and enhanced health status of individuals.

24. Section 3.2.2.5.4, page 71, Enhanced Primary Care Case Management:

“Contractor responsibilities #9”

Are there predetermined parameters for performing the member satisfaction survey? (i.e., random sample, stratified, frequency of survey etc.)

Not at this time.  However, the bidder should suggest any such parameters that may enhance the performance of this activity.

25. Section 3.2.2.6.4.1, page 75, EPSDT Care Coordination #3

“Assemble and coordinate the service care planning and interdisciplinary team for the private duty nursing & personal care services provided to the special needs children under EPSDT.”

Please clarify what is included in the scope “assemble and coordinate”. Is the State asking for the Medical Service contractor to facilitate the planning and care delivery or is the contractor required to convene the team and actively participate in the care planning process?

Telephone conference calls convened and led by contract staff with the family, case manager, provider, and other parties such as Child Health Specialty Clinics when there are PA requests that have outstanding issues or if the case manager requests a conference call.

26. Section 3.2.2.6.4.1, page 75, EPSDT Care Coordination #6

a. The timeframe for processing all other new requests are stated as “within the standards required by DHS.”  This is not defined in the performance standards.  Please define.

If a child is new to the PA services, hospital discharge planning is occurring, and there is a case manager identified the standard would be within 24 hours or next working day.

b. Also, the timeframe for processing requests for private duty and personal care are stated as “immediately”. This is not defined in the performance standards. Please define.

After receipt of a regular PA and supporting documentation is received a decision should be rendered with in five (5) working days.

27. Section 3.2.2.7.1, page 78, Prior Authorization: 

#1 states “Currently includes private duty nursing (EPSDT, personal care (EPSDT), orthodontia (EPSDT), DME, hearing aids, eyeglasses.”

Does the State anticipate a change in the scope of services requiring PA?  If so, please indicate how and what changes are anticipated along with anticipated review volumes.

Changes may be made in the future as DHS sees areas of improvement.  However, there are not specific plans to make changes at this time.

28. Section 3.2.2.7.4.1, page 81, Prior Authorization Processing:

“4 states “For emergency requests, arrange for an on-call professional to be reached 24 hours per day, 7 days per week through a pager system.”

Please define what would constitute and “emergency request”; the credentials required for the on call professional; and what level of physician support will be expected 24/7 coverage?

We will cover emergency situations without a PA.  Examples may be a PA has been approved for a physician that is on vacation and another physicians is covering the emergency and not aware of the PA approval.  They may not be willing to proceed without a PA approval.  These situations would be minimal.  Staff required – see 3.2.2.7 of RFP-04-034.

29. Section 3.2.2.7.4.1, page 82, Prior Authorization Processing:

#9, “As currently stated, this requirement includes sending a copy of the Request for PA form with the Decision Notice to the providers and senders.”

Please clarify that the intention is for the member to receive the request for PA in addition to the Decision Notice.

Yes, that is the intention.

30. Section 3.2.2.7.4.2, page 83, Prior Authorization File Maintenance:

#6, bullets 5&6 – regarding keeping a file with a “range of procedure codes and rage of diagnosis codes.”

a. Please clarify whether this is indicating that a service may be authorized for a range of codes vs. a specific code.

Yes

b. Would it be an acceptable alternative to have PA rules that would adjudicate a specific code within a range of codes for the PA?

Yes, for example, for targeted case management there are multiple codes and the decision would have to be code specific.

31. Section 3.2.2.7.4.2, page 84, Prior Authorization File Maintenance:

#8 “requires the contractor to maintain provider-specific PA’s. PA’s for DHS-specified services can be transferred without the PA process beginning again.”

Please clarify whether this applies to program specific benefit limits versus a review at the time of transfer of service from one provider to another to determine continued medical appropriateness.

Program specific benefit limits.

32. Section 3.2.2.8.4, Page 89-90, Quality of Care:

Contractor responsibilities Re: #1 & #5, “Participates in any Federal review.”

Please define the level of participation and scope of “Federal review” activity.

CMS will periodically review the managed care programs in Iowa.  The contractor is expected to support its activities at the time of the review and respond to any questions that might arise.  In addition, the contractor will assist the state in the development of responses to any questions that might arise from this or any other federal review.

33. Section 3.2.2.9, Pages 92-95, Long Term Care Assessment:

This section appears to encompass the federally mandated PASRR Level I and II screening (42 CFR 483.100) in conjunction with a level of care assessment and authorization process.

a. Is this a correct interpretation?  If not, who is performing the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise of External Entity performing PASRR screenings?

No, completed by IFMC

b. What tool is currently being used for Long Term Care pre-admission screenings and reassessments?

The MDS is currently used for nursing facilities to determine the level of care and is submitted electronically.  There are separate assessment tools for the waiver population to determine level of care, but these are prepared manually.  The long term care assessment process described in this RFP is a new process.  The contractor should propose a tool or propose an approach to the development of the tool to be considered by the Department.

c. What is the frequency for reassessments?

The frequency for the new long term care assessment process will be an initial pre-admission screening done to determine program eligibility.  A second screening is to be completed within 90 days after the initial screening, and then annually unless there is a significant change in the consumer that requires a reassessment prior to the annual one.

34. Section 3.2.2.9, Page 92, Long Term Care Assessment:

The second paragraph in the summary indicates “Nurses” will conduct the assessment.

a. Please indicate the level of nursing licensure required (LPN/RN).

May be RN or LPN

b. In addition to nurses, will the State consider allowing licensed professional with credentials appropriate to the type of assessment (i.e., Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Licensed Professional Counselor, Licensed Professional Examiner, Psychologist)?

No

35. Section 3.2.2.9.4, Page 94, Long Term Care Assessment, Contractor Responsibilities:

#4 requires the contractor to authorize individual services for nursing facility and ICF/MR members.

a. Please clarify if this is a prior authorization review.

See response #33 c. above.

b. If so, is a PA number generated and associated with the service authorization?

No

36. Section 3.2.2.9.4, Page 94, Long Term Care Assessment, Contractor Responsibilities:

#5 requires the contractor to authorize a preliminary care plan for HCBS members.

Please clarify who is responsible for developing the preliminary care plan.


   The contractor will prepare the preliminary plan that identifies the types of services that 
                 are needed. The preliminary plan is provided to the case manager who adds the details of 
                 the specific services and the providers. This data is then entered in ISIS and transferred to
                 the MMIS through a file transfer.
37. Section 3.2.2.9.5., Page 94, Long Term Care Assessment, Contractor Responsibilities:

#6 references software to authorize the preliminary plan.

a. Is it anticipated that the software will include the assessment tool and generate a preliminary plan of care?

Yes, include assessment tool and assist in development of preliminary POC

b. What is currently being used to do this?

See response 33 b. above.

c. Please clarify if this is a prior authorization review.

The initial pre-admission screening is done to determine eligibility.

d. If so, is a PA number generated and associated with the authorization of the preliminary plan.

Yes

38. Section 3.2.2.9.7, Page 95, Long Term Care Assessment, Performance Standards:

#3 & #4 describe referral services not discussed in the scope of contractor responsibility.

“These referral functions could be inferred from the Interfaces with External Entities section 3.2.2.9.3.”

Please describe how the referrals discussed in the performance standards occur.

# 3 in the performance standards is to "make referral for financial eligibility for Medicaid programs within two-(2) business days of initial assessment."  This performance standard is tied to Contractor Responsibility #7.  The contractor will notify DHS (income maintenance worker) after completing the assessment, if member chooses services funded by Medicaid.  This referral to the IMW is to determine the Medicaid financial eligibility, following the completion of the long term care assessment.

# 4 in the performance standards is to "make a referral for service coordination, as needed by program, within two-(2) business days of initial assessment.".  This performance standard is tied to Contractor Responsibility # 5.  If member chooses HCBS services and qualifies through the initial LTC assessment, the contractor will refer and notify the applicable service worker, case manager or case management entity of the completed assessment.  This referral is needed so that a care plan can be developed and services authorized though the service or case management system, as required by specific waiver program.

39. Section 6.2.2.7.4, Page 349, Contractor Responsibilities:

In the response to bidders’ questions to RFP MED-04-015, Vendor question 419, RFP Section 6.2.2.7.4, p. 349 Contractor Responsibilities, the question was: “Please clarify that the “psychological services” to be prior authorized by the contractor are for all such procedures not prior authorized by the Iowa Plan contractor (i.e., identification of potential task overlap).”

The State answered:  “Psychological services are not prior authorized.  See RFP MED-04-034.”

However, section 3.2.2.7.4 of RFP MED-04-34, page 81, states: The Medical Services Contractor is responsible for processing the prior authorizations for the following types of services:

· Medical Services

· Psychological Services

· Pharmacy Services

· Dental Services

· Targeted Case Management

Please clarify this requirement.

Psychological services are not prior authorized by this contractor.

40. Are the responses to vendor questions to MED-04-015 that directly relate to the Medical Services with Preferred Drug List RFP MED-04-034 – specifically the responses to questions 307 to 465 – still valid for purposes of this procurement?

Yes

41. Could a Medicaid HMO participate in the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise as the Medical Services Contractor?  Could the Medical Services Contractor operate, in the future, as one of the State’s Medicaid HMO plans?

Yes, provided that the HMO is not participating as a contracted provider or payer of direct services to Medicaid recipients.  In regards to the second question, please see the response to the first question.

42. Section 3.1.1.1, pages 22-26, Other Key Personnel:

a. Can the PDL Clinical Manager also be the Educational Specialist?

The PDL Clinical Manager could be the Education Specalist as long as they are qualified and able to meet all requirements as listed.

b. Is there a minimum of licensed clinical pharmacists required?

No there is not a minimum of licensed clinical pharmacists required, RFP specifies where clinical pharmacist need for PA

43. Section 3.1.6.6., page 46, The Report Card:

Please clarify the role of the Medical Services Contractor regarding performance standards for required reports and other standards that depend upon data generated from the MMIS.

The performance standards used for the report card will be negotiated between the Department and the contractor (also see Amendment #1, Section 6.6.2.4).

44. Section 3.2.1, page 52, Contractor Start-Up Activities:

Please verify the contract term and renewal options for the PDL and Supplemental Rebate Program.

Section 6.4 shall be amended to read as follows:

	PDL & Supplemental Rebate Program design,        Beginning May 1, 2004 &  

development, implementation & operation.             ending on June 29, 2005.

	

	Design, development & implementation of              Beginning July 1, 2004 & ending

remaining Medical Services.                                      on June 29, 2005 (1 year).

	

	Operations phase of all Medical Services.               Beginning June 30, 2005 & 

                                                                                      ending on June 30, 2010  (3 

                                                                                      years with 2 one-year options).

	

	Turnover phase for all Medical Services.                 Up to 6 months prior to the

                                                                                      expiration of the contract base

                                                                                      years or any exercised option

                                                                                      year.


45. Section 3.2.2.1, page 54, General Requirements:

Please identify by title or type “requisite State employees” as well as the number of employees included.

Medicaid Program Managers, Pharmacy Consultant, Bureau Chiefs and other policy staff.

46. Section 3.2.2.5, page 69, Enhanced Primary Case Management:

Please verify that these services cover the MediPass population only.  What is the anticipated volume of enrollees per year for the Enhanced Primary Case Management program?


      All populations other than those enrolled in HMOs may be enrolled in this program.  The 


      bidder is expected to recommend a volume of participation that achieves the goals of the


      Department of reducing expenditures and enhancing health status for individuals enrolled.

47. Section 3.2.2.7.5, page 86, Data Sources:

Are all four inputs to the authorization function required or is it appropriate to include some components but not others?


       A request for prior authorization may be submitted using any of the interfaces listed.

48. Section 3.2.2.8.2.2, page 88, Quality of Care:

Please verify that the interface expected with the state’s Medicaid HMO network is limited to Quality of Care services as described in 3.2.2.8.2.2.

Yes, as it pertains to this section.  There are other sections that speak to the activities regarding HMO activities.

49. Section 3.1 General Requirements for All Professional Service Components:

Stating the potential “for up to 9 separate awards”

Can a company bid on one or more of the functions in 3.2.2.?

Medical Services (MED-04-034) is one component of the nine expressed in MED-04-015.  The bidder for this RFP is bidding on the entire scope of work described herein.

50. Section 3.2.2.3.7, Performance Standards:

Paragraph 2 discusses enrollment in the DM pilot of “a minimum of 250”.

If the selected company is proposing the pilot disease and program can they propose a greater than 250 life pilot to provide better statistics and if so, is there a limit on size?

This is a minimum.  No Limitation has been made on the maximum.

51. Section 3.2.2.3.6, Required Reports:

Paragraph 1 discusses monthly reports on “utilization and costs.”  

Given the claims lag typical for Medicaid program inpatient and outpatient service claims, can these reporting frequencies be changed?

No

52. Section 3.1.1.1., Page 25, Table 2: Key Personnel for Medical Services Component:

“Minimum qualifications for key personnel include a Bachelor’s Degree for the Account Manager and Implementation Manager.”

Can significant, management-level experience directly related to the Iowa Medicaid program be substituted for the educational requirement of a Bachelors Degree?


  Yes, if the bidder can show the relevance of the experience to the position for which a 
                 person is proposed. No extra points will be given for Iowa-specific experience. (See 
                 Amendment 4)
53. Section 3.1.1.2.1., Page 27, Special Staff Needs, Professional Staff Requirements:

“Professional medical staff must carry liability insurance.”

a. If medical staff are covered under corporate liability policy must they also have individual professional liability insurance?

b. What does the Department consider “medical staff” (i.e., Medical Director, Pharmacists, Nurses)?

c. What are the minimum limits for professional liability insurance?

Answer to a, b & c – In response to (a), (b) and (c), pursuant to Section 6.12, the contractor must maintain professional liability insurance covering the liability of the contractor for any and all errors and omissions committed by the contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees in the performance of the Contract in a minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

54. Section 4.1, Page 114, Instructions, Bullet #3:

“Boxes should be labeled with the following information…RFP Title (Iowa Medicaid Enterprise Procurement) and RFP Reference Number (MED-04-015).”

The reference number cited is MED-04-015, which is different than the RFP reference number appearing throughout the RFP.  Should the instruction specify RFP reference number MEAD-04-034?

In response to (a), (b) and (c), pursuant to Section 6.12, the contractor must maintain professional liability of the contractor for any and all errors and omissions committed by the contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees in the performance of the Contract in a minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

55. Section 4.2.11.2, Page 123, Letters of Reference:

“The bidder shall provide Letter of Reference on reference companies letterhead from three (3) previous clients knowledgeable of the bidder’s performance in providing services similar to the services described in this RFP and a contact person and telephone number for each reference.”

If the bidder has held previous contracts with DHS, may the bidder request a letter of reference from DHS personnel?

No, bidder cannot us a letter of reference from Iowa DHS personnel but may use current contracts as references as well as previous contracts.

56. Section 4.2.5, Page 118, Understanding of the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise Procurement Project (Tab 5):

“Due to the complex nature of this procurement, DHS requests that bidders provide a written description of their company’s understanding of Iowa Medicaid Enterprise Procurement Project.”

a. Can you clarify the extent to which bidders must explain their “understanding’ of MED-05-015 RFP?

Please explain your understanding of the scope of the IME so that the Department has confidence that you understand entire scope of IME.

b. Please clarify if this was mistakenly brought over from that RFP or if it is to be a large component of this RFP?

No, it was not mistakenly brought over.

57. Section 5.2, Page 127, Evaluation Committee:

Subject matter Experts from State staff have been assigned to the evolution of this”

Are there missing words to the last sentence?  Please clarify.

Subject Matter Experts from State staff have been assigned to the evaluation of this “RFP.”
58. Section 5.4.2, Page 129, Evaluation Criteria and Assigned Point Totals:

According to the scoring sheet for the technical proposals, the total score is computed by multiplying the scale times the points.  This means that the maximum score could be 4200 (3 x 1400).  Section 5.5 states that the maximum score for the Medical Services (cost) component is 600.

a. Does this mean that the cost component is worth 12.5% of the total (600 out of 4800 points) or is the maximum technical score 1400 and the cost component becomes 30%?

See Amendment #2  (attached)

b. Does the 600 points for “Medical Services” include the PDL/SR component?

Yes

59. Section 6.19.6, Page 154, Subcontractors:

“Current employees of the Department, consultants, and consulting affiliates of the Department may not act as subcontractors without the prior written approval of the Department.”

What is the process and timeline necessary for obtaining prior approval from the Department regarding subcontracting with an entity that has a consulting relationship with the Department?

No prior authorization needed if named in RFP.  During the term of the contract, apply to the Contract Administrator in writing.

60. Section 6.20.14, Page 159, Not a Joint Venture:

“Nothing in the Contract shall be constructed as creating or constituting the relationship of a partnership, joint venture, or other association of any kind of agent and principal relationship between the parties.  The status of the Contractor and all subcontractors shall be that of an independent contractor.”

Will State make available a copy of business associate agreement the contractor will be required to sign?

Yes

61. Section 6.2.8.6, Item 2: Quarterly paid claims audits of MediPass enrollees.

Please clarify what an enrollee’s claims audit is and how enrollees are subject to this audit selection.


      There is no section 6.2.8.6 contained in this RFP.  Without further clarification the Department 

                    Cannot respond to this question.

62. Attachment K, Pricing Schedules for Cost Proposal, Pricing Schedule 1 – Composite Pricing Schedule for Individual Bid Proposal:

“The bidder is to identify a composite rate (CSR Rate) for additional “Change Services Request” or “Time and Materials” work that may or may not occur.”

a. May the bidder provide multiple rates for various levels of support or is a single rate required?

A single rate across the contract.

b. May the bidder provide a specific CSR Rate for each contract year or is a single rate required for all contract years?

A single rate across the contract.

63. Attachment K, Pricing Schedules for Cost Proposal, Pricing Schedule 4 – Call Center Costs – Informational Only:

Pricing Schedule 4 is to reflect various requirements and cost information for the PDL call center for the period prior to the operational state up of the entire Medical Services contract.  The RFP indicates that this schedule will be reviewed for informational purposes only.  A call center-type setup will also be required for the Medical Services portion of the Enterprise effort (excluding PDL).  Section 3.1.2.2.1, page 29, of the RFP indicates that DHS will provide Phones at no cost to the vendor.

· Several specific communications requirements are necessary to support a “best of breed” call center.  These include:

· Telephone hardware for each staff that is able to support Automatic Call Distribution (ACD).

· Telephone server hardware and software that is able to support ACD.

· Voice mailboxes for each staff member.

· Voice mailboxes (call boxes) for any introduction and routing function to the ACD group, as well as any fall through conditions.

· A two-way trunk group containing enough individual circuits (DS0s) to handle all inbound and outbound activity.

· Local and long distance service for the trunk groups.

· Ability to use validated account codes to call long distance.

Will DHS provide for these communications needs at no cost to the vendor?  Or, if a vendor feels that these items are required, should the cost for these items be included in the vendor’s cost proposal?

Yes, see Attachment K, Pricing Schedule 4.

64. Does the Department anticipate reimbursing Medicaid providers for supplying medical records to the Medicaid Service Contractor?  If yes, how much per page?  Will the State reimburse the Medicaid provider for postage?

No

65. What are the hardware specifications of the SQL servers that are currently installed and available on the state network?

SQL 7.0 and SQL 2000

66. If necessary, may the Medical Services contractor utilize their own servers and have them reside on the state network?

No

67. What is the Department’s network infrastructure and bandwidth on the backbone, to major servers, and to the workstations.

All T1 lines (1024 with bursts of 512)

68. What is the normal configuration of a PC on the state network?  What email system, network operating system(s), workstation operating system, and other software are normally used and available in the State’s environment?

Windows 2000/SP4, Exchange 5.5-Outlook 2000 Client, Exchange runs on NT 4.0, Microsoft Office Professional.

69. What make and model of telephone switch is installed at the State?

Siemens Hi Path 4000 telephone switch.

70. Is the state telephone system capable of supporting ACD call center operations including agent queues?

Yes

71. Does the State have reporting capability for call center agent performance and queue performance?  If so, what software is used?

Yes, Business View Observer.

72. Does the State telephone system have voice mail capability?

Yes

73. Does the State’s telephone system have the capability to add menu options to incoming calls and route them appropriately?

Yes

74. What were the individual proposed costs for all of the proposals for each of the services included in RFP MED 04-034?

Please provide scoring sheets for the previous procurement for these services.

Not available.

75. Will the entire Medical Services contract will be awarded to one vendor or will the state issue separate contracts for any of the ten service components of MED-04-034?

One vendor

76. Please confirm that the Core MMIS contractor is responsible for storing and providing real-time access to all necessary data to perform the services of MED-04-034 including, but not limited to:  pharmacy, lab, behavioral health, DME, disease management outcomes data.

Core MMIS screens

77. Section 2.6, Page 12, Resource Room/Bidders Library:

a. According to Attachment B, statistical information will not be available at the copy center.  Does this mean that it cannot be copied?

Statistical information is located in Attachment M of both MED-04-014 and MED-04-034.

b. Are Iowa Medicaid member and pharmacy data available electronically?

No

c. What is the total Medicaid population, by population component (eg, CHIP, adult, waiver, etc.)?

See http://www.dhs.state.ia.us/publications.asp (bottom of page “Medicaid B1 Reports”)

d. Do you have a history and projection of eligibility caseload?

See http://www.dhs.state.ia.us/publications.asp (bottom of page “Medicaid B1 Reports”)

e. What is the non-fee for service population?

See Attachment M in RFP MED-04-034.

f. What is the Iowa Medicaid drug budget for the last five years, the present year, and any out-year forecast? 

See Attachment 1 at the end of the questions and answers.

78. Section 4.2.2

P. 115 – Item #13 – Please provide clarification regarding a subcontractor’s relationship with a current Iowa HMO Medicaid Managed Care Contractor that is bidding on the RFP and intends to utilize services provided by an affiliate company within its parent corporate structure.

A subcontractor of a current Iowa HMO managed care contractor that is bidding on the RFP is not in and of itself a disqualifying event.  However, the Department reserves the right to look at the structure of the company to determine if the relationship is prohibited because of an identity in fact.

79. Section 3.1, page 21, General Requirements, Co-location of staff

Must all staff be co-located in Iowa or can the bidder propose co-location of key staff with offsite location of support staff?

All staff must be located at the IM site.

80. Section 2.21, Page 16, Disposition of Bid Proposals:

“All Bid Proposals become the property of the Department and shall not be returned to the bidder Proposal is rejected or the RFP is cancelled.”

The first sentence appears to be missing some words.  Please clarify.

“All Bid Proposals become the property of the Department and shall not be returned to the bidder unless the Bid Proposal is rejected or the RFP is cancelled.”

81. Section 3.1.1.2.1, Page 29, Permanent Facilities, State Responsibilities:

“On or about January 1, 2005, DHS expects to have the permanent facilities for Iowa Medicaid Enterprise staff ready to be occupied.” And “Within the General Requirements section of the Technical Proposal, the bidder will provide DHS with the following information.”

a. Will WAN system requirements and connectivity be provided by the state (T1’s, etc.)?

No

b. This section states that the Department will provide “phones”. Does this include the telephone system hardware and software infrastructure to enable meeting help desk deliverables, response time requirements and reporting needs?

Yes

c. Is the state responsible for building maintenance, cleaning, insurance, and repairs?

No

82. Section 3.1.2.4, Page 30, Contingency Plan:

“If the contingency plan for office space is activated, Iowa DHS will not reimburse applicable leasing fees.”

Should this indicate, “will reimburse applicable leasing fees?”

Yes, it should.

83. Section 3.1.3, Page 30, Contingency Plan, Onsite and Offsite Expectations.

The title of this section is “Onsite and Offsite Expectations”. ‘

There is only one subsection, and it refers to Onsite Expectations.  Is there a missing subsection for Offsite Expectations?

There are no offsite expectations for Medical Services vendors as they must be onsite.

84. When occupying the temporary site during the implementation year how will the contractor connect to the State? 

The State will have connectivity to the component contractors through a virtual private   network (VPN). It will be necessary for the contractors to have high speed internet access for connectivity.

85. Is it required that key personnel be hired by the contractor by the time the bid proposal is submitted?

No.  Only a letter committing to the project is necessary at the time of bid proposal submission.  The key personnel will have to be hired by the start of the contract (July 1, 2004).  Key personnel will, however, have to attend the oral presentation.

MED-04-015 Questions & Answers Applicable to MED-04-034

SET 1

RFP Section
6.1.1
p.
292
Staffing Requirements

253

Question:
Please clarify that “contract start date” in the context of the second bullet is refers to the 

“contract signing date” tentatively scheduled for May 28, 2004.

Response:
No, this refers to July 01, 2004.

RFP Section
6.1.1
p.
292
Staffing Requirements

254

Question:
Where must a proposed IME Account Manager be located when a bidder submits its 

proposal?

Response:
There is no requirement for the location of the proposed IME Account Manager at the 

time the bidder submits its proposal.

RFP Section
6.1.1
p.
292
Staffing Requirements

255

Question:
The RFP lists identical staffing requirements for all Professional Services Components, 

even though the scope, functions and responsibilities may vary considerably between the

different components.  For the Provider Cost Audits and Rate Setting Contractor 

component, would DHS accept a proposal that did not identify the minimum of two key 

operations manager positions as long as sufficient other staff resources with the requisite 

skills to meet or exceed all RFP requirements were identified in the proposal, and 

assurances were provided to secure the operations managers following contract award?  

Such an approach appears consistent with language at Section 6.1.1 (page 292), wherein 

the bidder should be in the best position to define the project staffing for the contractor’s 

approach.

Response:
Yes. DHS recognizes that one size does not necessarily fit all the professional services 

contractors.  The proposal must identify a project manager and other resources, either 

systems experts or policy and operations staff to assure the state that the contractor has 

people committed to the bidder that are capable of performing the requirements listed in 

the RFP.

RFP Section
6.1.1, Table 4
p.
294
Staffing Requirements

256

Question:
For the Key Personnel listed in this table, what is an acceptable location for their activities

on the “contract signing date?”  Is it possible for these individuals to be located 

elsewhere prior to July 1, 2004?

Response:
There is no requirement related to location of key personnel prior to July 1, 2004.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
292
Key Personnel To Be Named

257

Question:
What are DHS's expectations as far as the amount of time the contractor's assigned staff 

are required to spend at the Enterprise office?  For managers - Although a manager may 

be spending 100% of his/her time on the Iowa project, he/she will continue to have non-

client responsibilities that will require him/her to be in his/her home office.  For staff 

members - Are staff members expected to do all work associated with the Iowa project at 

the enterprise office and all other work at his/her home office?

Response:
All staff except POS systems maintenance and Pharmacy Help Desk staff is expected to be

on-site in the Iowa IME office when doing IME work. Staff assigned full-time to the 

project will be expected to be in the IME office on all State workdays with the exception of

vacation and approved sick time or personal days.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
292
Key Personnel To Be Named

258

Question:
The State is only requiring a few key positions for each component, but when considered 

in its entirety, the number of key staff far exceeds that of a typical fiscal agent operation.  

For example, a Provider Relations Manager is typically required, but the provider relations 

component requires three key positions.  Some of the services components are smaller in 

scope and three key personnel (account manager and two operations managers) seems 

excessive.  Based on both of these examples, would DHS consider reducing the key 

personnel requirements?

Response:
DHS recognizes that all Professional Services Components will not require the same level 

of staffing and therefore DHS believes it has accounted for some discretion among these 

components.  The bidder must identify a full time project manager and such other key 

staff as would be required to support all requirements listed in this RFP.  Monitoring of 

the individual component contractor’s activities and continued coordination of the IME 

will require significant effort on behalf of each component’s account manager.  As such, 

having 2 additional operations managers for the Provider Services component does not 

seem excessive. The contractor must have an account manager and a designated backup 

for the account manager. The contractor must have enough staff to meet the performance 

requirements and enough management staff to appropriately manage and monitor the 

contractor's activities.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
292
Key Personnel To Be Named

259

Question:
Please clarify the distinction between the "Account Manager" and the "Project 

Manager."  Please verify that you anticipate each of the Professional Service Components

 will have a minimum of a full time Account Manager and two full time Operations 

Managers during the periods noted on the chart on page 294.

Response:
The terms are synonymous.  DHS recognizes that all Professional Services Components 

will not require the same level of staffing.  The bidder must identify a full time project 

manager and such other key staff as would be required to support all requirements listed 

in this RFP.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
293
Key Personnel To Be Named

260

Question:
Can you provide the period of time (for resumed employees) over which we should 

calculate "...the percent of time to be dedicated to the Iowa MMIS..."?

Response:
Then intent of this question is to determine the status of key employees for the full term 

of the contract for the component bid.  If a key person is proposed to start by July 1, 2004 

when the contract is effective, the bidder should indicate if the employee is full time, or 

part time over the course of the contract. For key personnel who are not proposed to work

the full duration of the contract, the bidder needs to show start and end dates and the 

percentage of time devoted to the project during the period when they are part of the 

project.

RFP Section
6.1.1.2.4
p.
295
Coverage During Vacations for Sensitive Positions

261

Question:
Please provide a definition of “sensitive positions” as used in the context of this 

paragraph?

Response:
"Sensitive positions" in this context are defined as mission critical positions.

RFP Section
6.1.1.3
p.
295
DHS Approval of Key Personnel

262

Question:
Prior to July 1, 2004, when may successful bidders reasonably anticipate receiving DHS’ 

approval of key personnel as discussed in this paragraph?

Response:
See question # 96.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

263

Question:
In reference to the statement, “All costs associated with the temporary offices should be 

figured into the bidder’s Cost Proposal as part of the bidder’s overall fixed implementation

price”, should the bidder’s cost proposal include costs for all the items listed in 6.1.2.2.1 

State Responsibilities pertaining to permanent facilities?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

264

Question:
This paragraph states that cost overruns for temporary offices will not be billable to the 

State.  Pricing Schedule 2 in RFP Attachment K lists temporary office space as a fixed 

price.  Is temporary office space to be bid and billed on a fixed price or reimbursement 

basis?

Response:
Fixed – see question # 263.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

265

Question:
Should bidders budget for office supplies, postage, and the like during the transition 

period when they will be located in temporary quarters?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

266

Question:
What about equipment such as mailing machines for notices?  Will the bidder budget for 

these expenses or will the State acquire?  What should bidders assume about other types 

of equipment not specifically mentioned in the RFP?

Response:
All equipment will be provided by the State. If special equipment is needed, the bidder 

should identify the required equipment in the proposal.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

267

Question:
The requirement to include in the bidder’s cost proposal the acquisition, furnishing, and 

maintenance of temporary facilities provides an apparent cost advantage to the 

incumbent.  Will the State’s evaluation procedures account for this advantage?

Response:
See question # 53.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

268

Question:
Does there need to be coordination between all of the subcontractors when securing 

temporary office space?

Response:There will need to be coordination between the contractors during the Implementation 

Phase prior to the occupation of the IME facility and vendor staff will need to be available

and accessible for meetings in Des Moines. Vendors should consider this in selecting 

temporary offices, but there is no formal requirement for vendors to consult with each 

other in selecting temporary office space.

RFP Section
6.1.2.2
p.
296
Permanent Facilities

269

Question:
Please clarify the statement from the Bidders Conference that the permanent co-location 

facility will be sited within a 5-mile radius of the state capitol building in Des Moines.

Response:This is the current plan, but it is subject to change.

RFP Section
6.1.2.2.1
p.
296
State Responsibilities

270

Question:
Indicates that on or about January 1, 2005, DHS expects to have the permanent facilities 

for Iowa Medicaid Enterprise staff ready to be occupied.  This section also lists the 

resources that will be provided by DHS to vendors at no cost to the vendor.  Parking is 

not included on this list.  Will parking be provided for the vendors’ Iowa Medicaid 

Enterprise staff at no cost to the vendors?

Response:Contractor staff will have the same parking privileges as State employees. If the location is

 one which has no free parking available, both contractors and State employees will need 

 to pay for parking.

RFP Section
6.1.2.2.1
p.
297
State Responsibilities

271

Question:
What type of telephone system will be provided?  Please provide technical and 

connectivity information regarding the telephone system to be made available by the 

State to contractors beginning January 1, 2005?

Response:
The State will provide the telephone system. Bidders should identify their requirements 

for the telephone system in their proposal.

RFP Section
6.1.2.2.1
p.
297
State Responsibilities

272

Question:
Please provide a list of the “software licenses for commercially-available packages” that 

the State will be making available to contractors beginning January 1, 2005.  Please 

confirm that bidders should include licensing costs for additional software not included 

on this list in their cost proposals.

Response:
If the State approves the proposed software, the State will provide the licenses. See 

Amendment 4 for the change in the date.

State Software List:


Microsoft Professional Suite

SPSS

Visual InterDev

SQL Enterprise Utility & Analysis Services

Macromedia Flash

Visio

Power Designer

Crystal Reports

Front Page

Paint Shop Pro

Visual Basic

Business Objects

Java/Web Sphere

ASP  IIS (with graphics enhancement package)


For the DW/DS component, bidders will include the cost of licenses in the cost proposal 

for the purposes of full solution evaluation.  However, since the State will actually be 

purchasing the associated third-party licenses, the included cost will be deducted for 

purposes of payment.

RFP Section
6.1.2.2.1
p.
297
State Responsibilities

273

Question:
Will portable notebook computers be provided for contractor staff members performing 

on-site audit work?

Response:
Yes, but these will be shared resources. Not every staff member will have a portable 

notebook computer.

RFP Section
6.1.2.3.1
p.
298
Contractor Responsibilities

274

Question:
May bidders propose providing other commercially available software not on the State’s 

list of such software for use as part of the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.1.2.3.1
p.
298
Contractor Responsibilities

275

Question:
If a contractor wishes to use commercially available software which has not been 

identified in the RFP as being provided by DHS, how should that be presented in the 

Technical and Cost Proposals?

Response:
Recommendations for additional software should be identified in the bidder's technical 

proposal. If the State approves the recommendation, the State will purchase the licenses. 

These costs should not be included in the bidder's cost proposal.

RFP Section
6.1.3
p.
298
Onsite and Offsite Expectations

276

Question:
Is it DHS's intent that subcontractors and consultants would also be located in the same 

common facility?  Examples: If a subcontractor's time was not 100 percent dedicated to the

 Iowa Medicaid Enterprise, could the subcontractor's staff be located off site?  Would 

consultants (e.g., Ph.D. statisticians), who may be used by contractors on an occasional 

basis, be required to have physical presence at the Medicaid Enterprise premises while 

providing consultation?

Response:
In general staff of the contractor and any subcontractor, except POS system maintenance 

and Pharmacy Help Desk staff, engaged in IME work must be located in the IME facility. 

Consultants who are used from time to time would normally be expected to work on-site 

when they are doing IME work.

RFP Section
6.1.3.1
p.
298
Onsite Expectations

277

Question:
Is the contractor expected to assign an administrative staff person to work at the Iowa 

Medicaid Enterprise who will process our final audit reports?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.1.3.1
p.
298
Onsite Expectations

278

Question:
Please clarify your term "directly associated."  Does this mean only those who work full 

time on the project or does it mean anyone who works on the project?

Response:
Anyone other than POS system maintenance and Pharmacy Help Desk staff who is 

performing Iowa Medicaid work must perform the work on-site at the IME facility.

RFP Section
6.1.3.1
p.
298
Onsite Expectations

279

Question:
Will it be possible for any, for example, call center staff to be located in another city or 

state?   There may be economies of scale to be achieved by developing some components

 at locations already providing like services for a similar customer.

Response:
No. All call center staff other than staff for the Pharmacy POS Help Desk must be located 

in the IME facility. The other exception is to provide coverage outside of normal IME 

business hours, such as staff to cover night and weekend emergency prior authorization 

requests.

RFP Section
6.1.4
p.
298
General Start-Up Activities for Professional Services 

280

Question:
Please clarify whether the IS&S contractor selected under RFP No. MED-05-014 will be 

participating with the IME contractors as part of all activities described in this section.

Response:
Yes. See RFP MED-04-037.

RFP Section
6.1.4.1.1, bullet 4
p.
299
Planning Task Activities

281

Question:
Does the State currently have a project management system in mind, or is strongly leaning

 towards one system?

Response:
Microsoft Project 2002 will be used for project management.

RFP Section
6.1.4.1.2
p.
286
State Responsibilities

282

Question:
Are the State's policies regarding the scope of work within this RFP up to date or are 

policy revisions expected prior to implementation of any service requested in the RFP?  If 

so, please specify the services that will be affected by policy changes and when these 

changes will be effective.

Response:
At this time there are no known policy changes, but some may occur during the 

Implementation Phase.

RFP Section
6.1.4.1.4, bullet 5
p.
300
Deliverables

283

Question:
Please define the “Documentation Standards plan”

Response:
The documentation standards plan specifies the vendor's standards for its documentation

 (system, operations, and/or procedures), including the format of documents, naming 

conventions, version control process, etc.

RFP Section
6.1.4.2.1.2
p.
301
Contractor Responsibilities

284

Question:
Is the incumbent contractor contractually obligated to work with the new contractor?  If 

not, what contingencies are in place to facilitate with the knowledge transfer?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.1.4.2.2
p.
301
System Design Activity

285

Question:
Will the contractor be using the existing applications for the Professional Services 

Components or will the contractor be required to provide new software for each 

Professional Services System Component?

Response:
Yes, the contractor will be using existing applications. However, bidders may recommend 

their own software to provide more efficient and cost-effective processing of the work 

required for their contract. If approved, DHS will purchase the software or the license.

RFP Section
6.1.4.3.2
p.
306
Pilot Test Activity

286

Question:
If known at this time, please provide a listing of those Professional Services components 

(and contractors) that will be impacted by this requirement.

Response:
All contractors who utilize elements of the Core MMIS will be involved in the Pilot Test.

RFP Section
6.1.4.4.3, bullets
p.
309
Deliverables

 3 and 4

287

Question:
Please discuss the difference between “Emergency Back-out Plan” versus “Backup and 

Recovery Plan.”

Response:
The emergency back-out plan must be in place prior to the start of operations and will be 

invoked if the system is not ready to start operations on June 30, 2005. The backup and 

recovery plan will be in place during operations and would be invoked if there is a disaster

that affects the ability of the systems and/or operations to function. Each contractor is 

responsible for these plans for the work required under their contract.

RFP Section
6.1.5
p.
309
Contract Management

288

Question:
Has the contract management software that will be used been identified and, if so, what is 

it?

Response:
DHS will provide the project management software that will be used by all component 

contractors. Final decision of software has not been made.

RFP Section
6.1.6.1
p.
312
Approach to Performance Standards and Damages

289

Question:
Each Professional Services component task includes a variety of Performance Standards 

tied to its respective contractor responsibilities.  Please discuss and clarify that it would 

be a reasonable expectation that other performance standards will be developed and 

negotiated in conjunction with contractors over the term of the contract.  Please clarify 

that such additional or revised performance requirements implemented over the term of 

the contract would be included under the Change Service Request process described at 

Section 9.9.

Response:
Yes, the expectation is that other performance standards will be developed and negotiated

over the term of the contract and that such standards if implemented as a result of a 

change in the contract would be included under the Change Service Request Process in 

Section 9.9.

RFP Section
6.1.6.2
p.
312
Right to Assess Damages

290

Question:
Please clarify that the Department will only assess damages against the performance bond

 once the contractor has been given an opportunity to (1) utilize the Dispute Resolution 

Process For Damages Assessments listed in 6.1.6.3 and/or (2) the contractor has been 

given opportunity to remit payment.

Response:
The Department may obtain payment of assessed actual damages through one (1) or more

 claims upon any performance bond furnished by the Contractor after the Contractor has 

been given the opportunity to utilize the Dispute Resolution Process for Damage 

Assessments in Section 6.1.6.3 and/or the Contractor has been given the opportunity to 

remit payment.  This response also applies to Section 5.1.6.2.

RFP Section
6.1.6.3
p.
312
Dispute Resolution Process for Damages Assessment

291

Question:
Please clarify that the director's decision is the final administrative decision and that the 

director's decision will not prevent the contractor from pursuing the issue in any state or 

federal court that has jurisdiction

Response:
The Director's decision is final for purposes of Iowa Code Chapter 17A. Please refer to  

Section 9.20.6 for the appropriate forum.

RFP Section
6.1.6.4.1
p.
313
Systems Certification

292

Question:
Please clarify the process and criteria that will be used to determine the allocation of FFP 

reduction damages to the Professional Services Contractor

Response:
If the system is not certified due to acts of commission or omission of the contractor, 

damages would be assessed proportionate to the fault of the contractor.

RFP Section
6.1.6.4.2
p.
314
Operations Start Date

293

Question:
Please clarify the process and criteria for determining the allocation of damages to the 

Professional Services Contractor for a delay in the operations start date.

Response:
The criteria for any of the component contractors is failure to be operational on the 

scheduled operations start date due to a failure of the contractor to meet the operational 

requirements of their contract.

RFP Section
6.1.6.4.2
p.
314
Operations Start Date

294

Question:
This section states that the State will determine the Professional Services contractors’ 

ability to meet the June 30, 2005 date “following the conclusion of the MMIS 

implementation.”  In this context, how is “conclusion of the MMIS implementation” 

defined?  How would the state proceed if the new MMIS is implemented but a 

Professional Services contractor is not ready to use it?

Response:
The conclusion of the MMIS implementation is when the system becomes operational on 

June 30, 2005. The emergency backout plan would be invoked if necessary.

RFP Section
6.1.6.4.3
p.
314
Erroneous Payments

295

Question:
Please confirm that it is the State's intent for the professional services vendors at fault to 

directly initiate overpayment recovery or payment of an underpayment with providers in 

cases where that vendors performance has resulted in the overpayment or underpayment. 

 If the vendor at fault doesn't routinely have responsibility for recovery or payments, they

 won't be knowledge in the appropriate processes.  The vendor primarily responsible for 

these activities will also lose control of the process.

Response:
The vendor who is at fault should initiate the recovery or payment. If the vendor does not

 routinely have responsibility for recovery, they will work with the Revenue Collection 

contractor and/or the Core MMIS vendor through DHS to initiate the transaction.

RFP Section
6.1.6.4.3
p.
314
Erroneous Payments

296

Question:
Please clarify the process and criteria that will be used to determine whether the 

Professional Services Contractor has contributed to an erroneous payment. Please clarify 

prior to recouping the erroneously paid funds from the Professional Services Contractor 

that the contractor will be allowed to recoup such amounts through the MMIS. 

Additionally, please clarify that following payment to the Department, the contractor will 

be allowed to use the MMIS to recoup monies that are paid to the Department for 

erroneously paid amounts as well as pursue other available remedies outside of the MMIS.

Response:
If data entered in the MMIS by the contractor was entered erroneously (e.g., a provider 

rate was entered incorrectly, a manual price was entered incorrectly), the contractor who 

entered the data will be responsible for the erroneous payment. The contractor will be 

allowed to recoup such amounts through the MMIS, and if the contractor has made 

payment to DHS, they will still be able to pursue recoupment through the MMIS or other 

available means.

RFP Section
6.1.7
p.
315
Internal Quality Assurance

297

Question:
Please clarify whether the quality improvement measures referred to in this paragraph are 

in addition to the performance standards included within each service component of this 

procurement.  If so, within what timeframe will such quality improvement measures need 

to be approved by DHS and subsequently implemented?  What other IME contractors or 

other State agencies will participate in the design and monitoring of these quality 

measures?

Response:
The quality improvement measures referred to in the paragraph are in addition to the 

performance standards. The vendor should have a continuous quality improvement 

program in its operation. The intent is for each vendor to monitor its performance 

standards through a quality assurance process and to review its operations on a 

continuing basis to identify improvements that can be made in processes and procedures.

These may be triggered by the quality assurance process, but the vendor is expected to 

be pro-active and identify quality improvements in addition to those identified by the 

quality assurance process. All IME contractors will participate in the design and 

monitoring of the quality measures and will provide them to DHS for approval before they 

are implemented.

RFP Section
6.1.7.2
p.
315
Contractor Responsibilities

298

Question:
What is the due date for the "Quality Assurance Plan establishing quality assurance 

procedures"?

Response:
The Quality Assurance Plan must be developed and submitted for DHS approval during 

the Implementation Phase of the contract. Vendors should include the dates for 

preparation and submission of the plan in the work plan.

RFP Section
6.1.9
p.
317
Documentation

299

Question:
Please provide a list or copy of the “standard naming conventions” that DHS wishes 

bidders and contractors to use as part of the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise.  If one is not 

currently available, please provide a timeframe of when such conventions will be available

or, if to be developed, an estimated timeframe for DHS approval during the 

Implementation Phase.

Response:
Standard naming conventions will follow those currently utilized by the core MMIS 

application.  Details of the standard naming conventions will be available once the bidder 

starts work on the project.

RFP Section
6.1.10
p.
317
Security and Confidentiality Requirements

300

Question:
We typically use photo nametags with barcode swipe systems for secure entry. Would 

this be appropriate, and if so, should we include this in our implementation costs? We 

would recommend all contractors implement this security provision.

Response:
No. This should not be included in the cost proposal. DHS will provide nametags and 

security provisions.

RFP Section
6.1.10
p.
318
Security and Confidentiality Requirements

301

Question:
Will the State facility provide "limited access areas" for each of the vendors to secure if 

vendors are to maintain entry logs for these areas and maintain confidential and critical 

materials in limited access, secured areas?  Please clarify the definition of "limited access 

areas".

Response:
The facility will provide limited access areas for the whole IME. The configuration of the 

building will provide for the limited access areas for the whole enterprise.

RFP Section
6.1.11 and 6.1.12
p.
318 and 319
Accounting Requirements

302

Question:
This section requests that "records be maintained separate and independent of other 

accounting records of the contractor." Please confirm that bidders will not need to set up 

separate corporate entities for this contract.

Response:
This is confirmed. See also question # 91.

RFP Section
6.1.12 and 9.19.4
p.
319 and 
Audit Requirements

521.

303

Question:
Section 6.1.12 requires "...an independent audit of their Iowa account annually" while 

Section 9.19.4, page 521 requires "...a complete financial audit conducted annually...".  If 

an audit of the Iowa Account is the required, are you expecting an audit of the 

contractor's profit or loss on this contract?  If a complete financial audit is required, are 

you expecting an audit of the contractor's whole organization?

Response:
The audit will consist of those functions related to its work on the Iowa contract.

RFP Section
6.1.12.2
p.
319
Access to Records

304

Question:
Please confirm that the contractor-provided facilities are only required in instances where 

audits and inspections are not taking place at the Des Moines facility.

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.1.13
p.
319
Transfer of Work Responsibilities

305

Question:
By each bid component, please describe the safeguards DHS will put in place with current

contractors to require their participation and cooperation with the new contractors for a 

smooth transfer of work responsibilities during the DDI-Installation Phase.

Response:
DHS will ensure the cooperation of current contractors through enforcement of 

contractual obligations to transfer to the new contractor.

RFP Section
6.1.13
p.
320, last 
Transfer of Work Responsibilities

sentence of

 the last 

paragraph.

306

Question:
Can any more specific information be provided on how much "unfinished work" each of 

the Professional Service Components can expect?

Response:
DHS will monitor the current contractors' performance to ensure that performance 

standards continue to be met during the start-up phase of the new contracts. DHS expects

 that inventories to be turned over would be equivalent to no more than would be normal 

at the end of any work day.

RFP Section
6.2
p.
321
Medical Services Component

307

Question:
In the introductory paragraph to this Professional Services component, please identify all 

activities performed by the Iowa Foundation for Medical Care (QIO), the incumbent Fiscal 

Agent and other organizations.

Response:
Refer to Section 3 of RFP.

RFP Section
6.2.1
p.
321
Contractor Start-Up Activities

308

Question:
For inclusion in proposed Implementation Phase work plans, please provide an estimated 

timeframe when the Medical Services contractor may be able to participate in “training 

from the systems contractors on using their systems.”

Response:
See question # 466.

RFP Section
6.2.1.2
p.
322
Development Task

309

Question:
What is the scope of services provided by the contracted POS pharmacy claims processor?

Response:
See RFP Section 3.

RFP Section
6.2.1.2
p.
322
Development Task

310

Question:
Who is the State of Iowa currently contracted with to provide POS pharmacy claims 

processing services?

Response:
Affiliated Computer Services (ACS)

RFP Section
6.2.1.2
p.
322
Development Task

311

Question:
Does the State of Iowa anticipate any change in the scope of services provided by the 

POS pharmacy claims processor as a result of this procurement?

Response:
Under the new contract Pharmacy prior authorizations will be processed by the Medical 

Services contractor. The POS contractor will need to develop a process to access the Core

MMIS PA file to verify authorization or develop a file transfer process to obtain the PA 

data from the Core MMIS.

RFP Section
6.2.1.2
p.
322
Development Task

312

Question:
When will the Workflow Process Management system be available to assist the 

contractor in meeting Development Task requirements?

Response:
The Workflow Process Management system will be developed during the Implementation 

Phase Development Task and will be used during the Operations Phase to monitor and 

track workflow. During the Implementation Phase, including the Development Task, work 

will be tracked in a Project Management system using Microsoft Project 2002.

RFP Section
6.2.1.3
p.
322
Acceptance Test Task

313

Question:
Please clarify the data conversion that is verified during the acceptance test task.

Response:
During the Acceptance Test Task, the testing will verify that data transferred from the 

contractors systems (i.e., Core MMIS and POS) have been transferred and converted to 

the State Data Center system and the new vendor’s POS system. It will also test the 

conversion of MMIS data to the Data Warehouse.

RFP Section
6.2.1.3
p.
322
Acceptance Test Task

314

Question:
Will connectivity and technical costs by borne by the POS claims processor or should 

those costs be included in the proposal?

Response:
The POS contractor will pay all connectivity and technical costs. These should be 

included in the cost proposal.


RFP Section
6.2.1.4
p.
322
Implementation Task

315

Question:
Will the IS&S contractor be responsible for developing a joint interface plan for all nine 

contractors and who will coordinate the plan?

Response:
Each contractor will provide the plan for its own component(s). The I&SS contractor will 

be responsible for the integration of the component plans into a master plan and will 

coordinate with all component contractors. DHS will provide the interface for all 

contractors.

RFP Section
6.2.1.5
p.
322
Operations Task

316

Question:
Will the contractor secured through this procurement have real time or near real time 

access to claims data?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.2.1.5
p.
322
Operations Task

317

Question:
Does the State of Iowa expect 100% of operations described in this request for proposals 

to occur within the State?

Response:
Other than Pharmacy POS activities, all operations will be performed at the IME facility in 

Des Moines.

RFP Section
6.2.2.1
p.
323
General Requirements

318

Question:
Are the medical policies for DHS up to date?

Response:
Yes. The policies can be found in the state administrative rules.

RFP Section
6.2.2.1
p.
323
General Requirements

319

Question:
The RFP states in the first paragraph “The contractor will also take the lead in developing 

analytical tools for quality assessment of service provided through Medicaid.”  Please 

explain in more detail.

Response:
The contractor should apply the same standards to Medicaid as one would to a managed 

care organization and should use those standards as a model.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.2
p.
324
Interfaces

320

Question:
Please describe those circumstances where contractor personnel would interface with 

providers regarding “decisions on individual claims.”  What expectation(s) does the State 

have in regards to the outcomes of discussions with providers regarding “decisions on 

individual claims?”  How will contractor personnel be authorized to use populated claims 

data in meeting this requirement?

Response:
The contractor may interface with providers to clarify medical policy and medical 

necessity decisions made by the contractor's staff. Contractor personnel will use the on-

line access to claims history when necessary to review the decisions and respond to 

questions from providers.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.2.1
p.
324
Interfaces With Other Iowa Medicaid Enterprise 

321

Question:
The RFP states “At the request of DHS, Medical Support staff may update the provider 

files at the MMIS with any new procedure codes or provider types …”  Does this mean 

that the PDD files must be updated?

Response:
The medical support function will review and recommend changes to the procedures, 

diagnoses, and provider files. The Core MMIS will be responsible for updating the 

reference files and the Provider Services contractor will be responsible for updating the 

provider file upon approval of the recommendations by DHS.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1.1
p.
324 and 325
General Medical Support

322

Question:
Does the contractor develop a process for submission of recommendations? Please define

 the frequency of policy implementations-annual or as changes are defined and approved?

Response:
The Contractor will develop process for approval by DHS. Policy implementations are 

done as changes are defined and approved.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1
p.
325
General Medical Support

323

Question:
Is the State expecting consultants to be on-sight staff or may consultants participate from 

a remote location or another state?

Response:
When consultants are working on the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise, they should be on-site at

 the IME facility.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1
p.
326
General Medical Support

324

Question:
Are the names of the consultants required at time of proposal submission or at time of 

contract implementation?

Response:
Names of the consultants must be provided at the time of contract execution.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1
p.
326
General Medical Support

325

Question:
The RFP states that medical staff support DHS in responding to appeals and requests for 

exceptions to policy.  It further states that medical staff are required to attend appeal 

hearings, etc.  How many appeals does DHS receive in a fiscal year?  How many exception

 to policy requests?  How many appeal hearings are there?

Response:
Appeals received in FY 03 was 2,021. 

Exception to Policy received for calendar year 2003 are:

  1 for hawk-i

  439 for HCBS

  2 for HIPP

  859 for Medical Coverage

  49 for Medicaid Eligibility

Approximately 826 appeals go to hearing.  97 Department reversed, 285 affirmed, 444 

modified and the rest were either denied, dismissed, abandoned or withdrawn.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
325
General Medical Support

bullet 3

326

Question:
Please describe the scope of the State’s expectation of the “technical assistance” that 

may be required from the contractor in responding to program reviews and audits.

Response:
Contractors must fully cooperate with any outside auditors to provide information within 

their area of work under the contract.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
325
General Medical Support

bullet 4

327

Question:
Please clarify that support to providers for billing requirements and policy questions are 

only as it relates to prior authorization requests.  Please confirm that general inquiries 

regarding policy and billing are to be handled by the Provider Relations vendor.

Response:
Medical support staff will prepare the policy clarification and identify the provider groups as needed, and the Provider Services staff will review for format, obtain DHS approval, and arrange for distribution. General inquiries regarding policy and billing will be handled by 

the Provider Services contractor.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
325
General Medical Support

bullet 4

328

Question:
Does a tracking system currently exist, and if so, are we expected to use it or 

provide/develop our own system?

Response:
The contractor will use the WPM to track contacts.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
325
General Medical Support

bullet 5

329

Question:
Where must the medical and social service professionals listed in this requirement be 

located and licensed?  Does DHS anticipate that the contractor will credential each 

participating medical and social service professional staff or consultant?  When must 

these professionals be available for IME program services, if prior to the June 30, 2005 

operations date?

Response:
Medical and social service professionals must be licensed in Iowa. The Contractor will be 

responsible for verifying credentials. These professionals must be available prior to June 

30, 2005 to get training in the system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
325
General Medical Support

bullet 5

330

Question:
Are these consultants required to have a clinical license from the State of Iowa? If so, can 

this license be obtained after contract award?

Response:
Yes to both questions.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 5

331

Question:
The last paragraph of #5 indicates that the scope of work for Medical Services 

consultants includes member utilization review.  This seems to be in conflict with Sections

 3.4.16.1 and Section 5.2.2.11.3 that indicate member utilization review is done by IFMC or 

the new Lock-In contractor.  Please clarify.

Response:
The Medical Services contractor will be responsible for lock-in. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 6

332

Question:
In other states it is acceptable for physicians to give testimony at fair hearings and attend 

meetings via telephonic conference connections. Is this acceptable in Iowa?

Response:
Yes.


RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 7

333

Question:
What determinations of medical necessity appropriateness are currently performed?  How 

many such reviews are performed monthly?  What tools and criteria are used in 

performing such medical necessity reviews?

Response:
Normally, determinations of this nature are performed through the Prior Authorization 

function.  The average number of PAs received per month is 910.


The criteria for the majority of PA requests are addressed in the Iowa Administrative Code

 (IAC) or Medicare Guidelines.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 7

334

Question:
Does the State have an anticipated volume of claims requiring manual review?

Response:
No

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 8

335

Question:
Please provide the average monthly volume of claims that require manual pricing by type 

of service (i.e., DME, MD, etc).

Response:
We do not have the numbers broken down by type of service, however, the total 

occurrences is 3,081 for the month of December 2003.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 8

336

Question:
Please clarify that it is DHS’ expectation that the Medical Services contractor will be 

paying claims in the context of medical necessity reviews?  Please provide the rationale 

for this contractor not forwarding its medical necessity findings to the Core MMIS 

contractor for final processing.   How many claims are currently paid each month in this 

manner?  Is it DHS’ expectation that the Medical Services contractor will be providing 

claims processors to accomplish this task?  Our concern is that it does not appear 

appropriate from an internal controls standpoint for the Medical Services contractor to be 

paying claims in any fashion – please provide a detailed explanation of DHS’ expectation 

so that potential bidders may best address this task in their proposals.

Response:
The Contractor will not be paying claims. The Medical Services contractor will be 

reviewing claims that cannot be priced automatically, such as DME equipment that is 

tailored to the specific member and other claims that require a medical decision to 

determine the price. Once the price has been determined, the Medical Services contractor 

staff will enter the price using the on-line pend resolution process.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 9

337

Question:
How many new outpatient hospital programs have been certified in the past 2 years?  

Please identify them.

Response:
The number certified in the last two years is 29. They are: Cardiac Rehab 3, Substance 

Abuse 2, Diabetic Education 16, Eating Disorder 1 and Pulmonary Rehab 7.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 10

338

Question:
Please provide the average monthly volume of claims related to hysterectomies, abortions,

 sterilization, private duty nursing, personal care and orthodontia that require review and 

the review purpose (compliance with completed forms vs. clinical).

Response:
These numbers do not represent paid claims.  The following numbers represent the 

number of claims that were reviewed because of these diagnoses: Hysterectomies – 115, 

Abortions – 209, Sterilizations – 2,025, Private Duty Nursing – insignificant, handled 

through Prior Authorization process, Orthodontia – insignificant, handled through Prior 

Authorization process.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 15

339

Question:
Please clarify the State’s expectation that the contractor will be assisting providers with 

billing procedures as applicable only to medical necessity requirements.

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 15

340

Question:
Please clarify when Medical Services will receive and track calls from providers and other 

stakeholders, compared to those calls received by Provider Relations.

Response:
See  RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 15

341

Question:
Does a tracking system currently exist, and if so, are we expected to use it or 

provide/develop our own system?

Response:
The Workflow Process Management system will be used as the tracking system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 16

342

Question:
Does that State have an anticipated volume of home health services claims reviews for 

medical necessity?

Response:
Approximately 10% of claims are reviewed per month. There are 34,000 claims per month.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2
p.
327
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

343

Question:
Is there a current PDL for Iowa Medicaid?

Response:
No.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 
p.
328
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

bullet 7

344

Question:
Is there a current application to host the information regarding drugs on the PDL for the 

provider community?  The internet is mentioned; does the contractor have to build a site 

to host this information if one does not already exist?

Response:
See RFP MED-04-034 for these requirements.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 
p.
328
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

bullet 10, #2

345

Question:
Will we be required to develop and host this website, or provide content to another 

contractor?

Response:
The contractor will provide content for the website to the State.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2
p.
328 and 347
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

346

Question:
Are there any other requirements for Internet, web-based browser, or client server 

environments for the Medical Services Component, other than the PDL and P&T 

Committee requirements (Page 328) and the option to use a Web portal or other means for 

the ANSI X12 278 transaction (Page 347)?

Response:
No.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 
p.
329
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

bullet 10, #8

347

Question:
Does DHS intend to provide the federal and supplemental rebate information to the 

Medical Services contractor to accurately calculate the net cost?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3
p.
330
Disease Management

348

Question:
Please provide enrollment data of chronic patients and the ABD population by county to 

assist bidders in developing their disease management and case management programs.  

Please include the number of recipients by disease type and costs to provide care for the 

past 3 years, as known.

Response:
DHS expects the contractor to perform this analysis as part of the contract. See 

Attachment E to these responses for the disease type and cost information.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3
p.
330
Disease Management

349

Question:
Is there a current disease management contractor?  If so, what is the contractor's name?

Response:
The Department does not currently have a formalized disease management program.  

However, the Department initiated a pilot program for diabetes management in October of 

2003 which is expected to be concluded as of September 30, 2004.  This is being 

undertaken by the Iowa Foundation for Medical Care.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3
p.
330 to 334
Disease Management

350

Question:
Please provide a current list of high-dollar inpatient stays and days per thousand.

Response:
See Attachment D to these responses.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3
p.
331
Disease Management

351

Question:
Please provide a listing of DHS’ “service regions in the state,” including a list of the 

counties included in each service region.

Response:
There are 8 service Areas in Iowa.  Each has responsibility for a specific set of counties.  

They are as follows:  Sioux City – Buena Vista, Cherokee, Clay, Dickinson, Emmett, Ida, 

Kossuth, Lyon, O’Brien, Osceola, Palo Alto, Plymouth, Sioux, Woodbury.  Waterloo – 

Black Hawk, Bremer, Butler, Cerro Grodo, Chickasaw, Flyod, Franklin, Grundy, Hancock, 

Mitchell, Winnebago, Worth.  Dubuque -  Allamakee, Buchanan, Clayton, Clinton, 

Delaware, Dubuque, Fayette, Howard, Jackson, Winneshiek.  Ames – Calhoun, Hamilton, 

Hardin, Humboldt, Jasper, Marshall, Pocahontas, Poweshiek, Story, Tama, Webster, 

Wright.  Council Bluffs -  Audubon, Carroll, Cass, Crawford, Fremont, Greene, Guthrie, 

Harrison, Mills, Monona, Taylor, Montgomery, Page, Pottawattamie, Sac, Shelby.  Des 

Moines – Adair, Adams, Boone, Clarke, Dallas, Decatur, Lucas, Madison, Marion, Polk, 

Ringgold, Union, Warren, Wayne.  Cedar Rapids – Appanoose, Benton, Davis, Iowa, 

Jefferson, Johnson, Keokuk, Linn, Mahaska, Jones, Monroe, Van Buren, Wapello, 

Washington.  Davenport -  Des Moines, Henry, Lee, Louisa, Muscatine, Scott, Cedar.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3
p.
331
Disease Management

352

Question:
Please define “Service Region”

Response:
See question # 361.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3 and 
p.
331
Disease Management

6.2.2.3.2

353

Question:
a. Should this initial passage read, non-HMO and MediPASS members, since it is our 

understanding the disease management program does not apply to HMO members? b If 

the disease management program does apply to HMO members, please provide details of 

that relationship.

Response:
HMO enrollees are not enrolled in the diabetes management program. The disease 

management program does not apply to HMO enrollees.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.2.2, 
p.
332
Interfaces With External Entities

bullet 2

354

Question:
Who is this “separate contractor” and what role in data analysis will they be performing?

Response:
The interface noted in 6.2.2.3.2 speaks to any "outside contractor" that the medical services contractor may use to analyze data.  Bullet 2 speaks to the ability to interface with such a 

contractor.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.4
p.
332
Contractor Responsibilities

355

Question:
Is the bidder required to propose a disease management system?

Response:
The bidder is required to propose a disease management program and bring the tools 

necessary to implement it.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.4
p.
332
Contractor Responsibilities

356

Question:
Once identified, is recipient participation voluntary or mandatory in the pilot program?

Response:
Current activities are voluntary. The department will entertain any suggestion as to how 

to encourage enrollment and such should be part of the bidder’s response.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.4
p.
332
Contractor Responsibilities

357

Question:
The RFP reference ‘The successful bidder will use current automated tools and apply 

clinical expertise to identify non-HMO members with chronic diseases …’.  What are the 

current automated tools?

Response:
The contractor will utilize the Data Warehouse to identify and analyze data to support this

 function.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.4
p.
332
Contractor Responsibilities

358

Question:
What “current automated tools” does Iowa Medicaid use to identify members having 

chronic diseases?  Is it expected that the contractor be taking over the use of these tools 

in performing disease management tasks as part of the IME?  Please explain.

Response:
Claims data may be analyzed to determine which individuals may benefit from disease 

management programs based on diagnosis and utilization of services. Claims data will be 

available from the data warehouse to perform the analysis.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.4
p.
332
Contractor Responsibilities

359

Question:
What will the relationship be between the Medical Services vendor and the POS system 

vendor as it relates to the disease management program?

Response:
The Medical Services will obtain pharmacy data from the Core MMIS claims history file 

and the DW/DS. There will be no direct interface with the POS system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.7, bullet 1
p.
334
Performance Standards

360

Question:
Over what time period is the 10% savings expected to be achieved?

Response:
See question # 361.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.7, bullet 1
p.
334
Performance Standards

361

Question:
What baseline year and costs does the State propose for use in measuring the 10 percent 

reduction in cost of care for the disease management pilots, or are they open to 

negotiation with the State as the pilots are finalized and approved?

Response:
The Department would look at the full fiscal year immediately prior to initiation of any 

disease management pilot as a starting point, but DHS is open to negotiation.


RFP Section
6.2.2.3.7, bullet 3
p.
334
Performance Standards

362

Question:
Can people voluntarily disenroll at any time, for any reason, from the disease management

 program? If so, it may be somewhat difficult to achieve the 90% target.

Response:
The program is voluntary in nature.  See question # 356.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4
p.
334
Retrospective Drug Utilization Review (RetroDUR)

363

Question:
What personnel resources are anticipated to be contributed by the State to RetroDUR 

activities?  What will be their qualifications?

Response:
See 6.2.2.4.3, Pharmacy Consultant participates in the meetings, monitors activities of 

DUR committee, contractors and approves education letters.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.2.2
p.
335
Interfaces With External Entities

364

Question:
What roles do the University of Iowa, the Iowa Pharmaceutical Association and other 

external entities currently have in existing RetroDUR activities?

Response:
The University of Iowa and the Iowa Pharmaceutical Association  staff and operate the 

RetroDUR committee. They also assist in providing information and input when requested

 on issues considering cost containment recommendations, identify trends in drugs, 

studies, special research products.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.2.2
p.
335
Interfaces With External Entities

365

Question:
To the extent that the University of Iowa or the Iowa Pharmacists Association is involved,

 is it the State of Iowa’s anticipation that the selected vendor will duplicate their work, act 

as a subcontractor or subcontractee, or provide supplemental support?

Response:
Because the IPA is currently the subcontractor for the administrative services of the DUR 

project there may be more interaction with this entity currently than would be with a 

different contractor. With the University of Iowa there is currently assistance from them 

with special research projects. The vendor will basically have these entities and others 

available, if they choose, to work collaboratively on projects, which the State would view 

as beneficial  to continue the good relations between the DUR Commission and the 

pharmacy community as well as other provider groups.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.3, bullet 1
p.
336
State Responsibilities

366

Question:
How often does the current DUR Committee meet?  And in what locations?

Response:
The committee meets eight times a year in Des Moines, Iowa at Iowa Foundation for 

Medical Care and the Iowa Pharmacy Association.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.4
p.
336
Contractor Responsibilities

367

Question:
The RFP states in item #6 ‘Develop, install and maintain a software program that can 

support an analysis of prescription patterns by physician, by drug category …’  Would 

this requirement be better suited to the Pharmacy Component as the Pharmacy 

Component contractor will have all the claims data and a programming staff?  If not, then 

must the Medical Services contractor obtain a copy of the pharmacy claims data and hire 

programming staff to develop a software application that can produce the appropriate 

reports?

Response:
The Medical Services contractor will be responsible for recommending RetroDUR 

software to be installed on the State system. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.4
p.
336
Contractor Responsibilities

368

Question:
The RFP states in item #5 ‘Provide professional pharmacists to staff the DUR committee, 

as required.’  How often does the DUR Committee meet?  What will be the duties of these 

pharmacists in regards to the DUR Committee?

Response:
They meet eight times a year.  They review medication claims data of recipients to assure 

appropriate and cost effective use of medications.    They review aggregate claims data to 

identify trends in costs, prescribing patterns, billing patterns and patient overuse.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.4, bullet 6
p.
336
Contractor Responsibilities

369

Question:
What software programs or packages are currently installed and functioning that support 

the activities of this requirement?  Is it expected that the contractor be taking over the use 

of these tools in performing RetroDUR tasks as part of the IME?  Please explain.

Response:
IFMC and IPA jointly own the software system QA,Inc. currently used for this function.  

They are hired through the DHS to provide this function.  A new contractor would need 

to develop, install and maintain a software program for this function.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.4.5
p.
336
Contractor Responsibilities

370

Question:
How many professional pharmacists are provided for the DUR Committee under the 

current contract?

Response:
Three Iowa Licensed Pharmacists- one is the project coordinator who is the chairperson 

for the meetings and two others RPh’s from IPA staff.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.6 and 
p.
337
Required Reports

6.2.2.4.7, bullet 2

371

Question:
In measuring “program savings” of one percent arising from contractor RetroDUR 

activities, what will be the baseline year(s) and costs for such determinations and 

reporting?

Response:
See clarification of this requirement in RFP Med-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.7
p.
337
Performance Standards

372

Question:
The RFP states in item #32 ‘Demonstrate annual savings of at least one percent (1%) in 

total outlays for prescription drugs for the prescriptions included in the RetroDUR 

universe.’  Since one of the prime responsibilities of the Medical Services contractor is to 

prepare DUR intervention letters for targeted medical practitioners and to try and change 

prescribing patterns, over which they have no control, how can the Contractor be held to 

a standard of annual savings of 1%?

Response:
See clarification of this requirement in RFP Med-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.7, bullet 2
p.
337
Performance Standards

373

Question:
The performance standard for RetroDUR is demonstrated annual savings of at least 1% in 

total outlays for prescription drugs included in the RetroDUR universe.  Please provide 

the historical annual savings.

Response:
See clarification of this requirement in RFP MED-04034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.4.7, bullet 2
p.
337
Performance Standards

374

Question:
a. How is “one percent (1%) in total outlays for prescription drugs for the prescriptions 

included in the Retro DUR universe” defined?  b. Do “total outlays” include state and 

federal dollars?  c. Does “Retro DUR universe” include all outpatient prescriptions or only

those medications that are reviewed through the Retro DUR process?

Response:
See clarification of the requirement in RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5
p.
337
Enhanced Primary Care Case Management

375

Question:
Regarding page 337 of the RFP, please indicate more specifically, which medical services 

will be managed by the contractor?

Response:
See question # 376.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5
p.
337
Enhanced Primary Care Case Management

376

Question:
Please describe existing enhanced PCCM activities and identify who performs them.

Response:
The enhanced PCCM program will be a member-oriented program to manage temporary 

acute conditions and complex combinations of diseases that involve special medical 

needs. The purpose of the enhanced PCCM program is to assist members in getting 

through the treatment of an episode of care combined with service-oriented assistance to 

obtain treatment. The contractor will monitor and perform analysis to determine who 

would benefit from enhanced PCCM and will accept referrals from the member's PCCM. 

The contractor will then work with the member's PCCM to assist in identifying services 

and treatment.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5
p.
337
Enhanced Primary Care Case Management

377

Question:
For the Enhanced PCCM component, is it envisioned that the contractor would be an 

adjunct to the PMP or would the contractor be involved in "hands on" care management?

Response:
See question # 376.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.2.2
p.
338
Interfaces With External Entities

378

Question:
Please clarify that providers statewide also represent external entities with which 

interfaces may be required.

Response:
Yes, the contractor will interface with providers who can perform the required services.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.2.2, 
p.
338
Interfaces With External Entities

bullet 2

379

Question:
Please clarify the case managers identified as an external entity.

Response:
These are the PCCMs. The contractor will work with the PCCM to coordinate the services 

of other providers.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.3
p.
338
State Responsibilities

380

Question:
What guidelines will DHS use to refer recipients for case management to the Medical 

Services contractor?  How many referrals do you anticipate per week?

Response:
The contractor will be responsible for suggesting guidelines and protocols to the 

Department to identify recipients who would benefit from this type of service.  The 

Department will not be making referrals.  Referrals will be made by members' PCCMs. The 

number of referrals will be dependent upon how the contractor develops the program.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.3, bullet 2
p.
338
State Responsibilities

381

Question:
Will the State develop the identification algorithm for referral to case management?

Response:
The contractor will perform analyses and develop the protocols for identifying members 

who would benefit from the enhanced primary care case management program.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

382

Question:
Enhanced PCCM #4 & 5, "Provide professional medical staff to perform case management 

and... prepare care plans".   Is this indicating identification of network physicians to 

function as case management or expecting the Medical Service Contractor to utilize plan 

staff to perform these functions?

Response:
The contractor will work with the member's PCCM to assist in identifying services and as 

part of its analysis will identify providers who can perform the services needed to support

the member.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

383

Question:
Is the contractor expected to peer review physicians that serve as the primary care 

providers for members in the PCCM program?

Response:
No.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

384

Question:
Does the State have its own assessment tool that the contractor will adopt for peer 

review, or will the contractor be allowed to develop a tool?

Response:
No. The contractor will develop the tool.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 7
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

385

Question:
Is a 24/7 call center required?

Response:
A 24/7 call center is not required, but an 24/7 emergency on-call function is required.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 7
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

386

Question:
Case managers from which organization are being referenced in function #7?

Response:
The case managers referred to here are the PCCMs.


RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 7
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

387

Question:
Please clarify the case manager referred to in item 7.

Response:
The case manager is the PCCM.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 8
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

388

Question:
Please elaborate on peer review of case management activities.

Response:
The contractor is expected to do peer review on their own case management activities, i.e.,

 its enhanced case management work with the PCCMs and support of PCCMSs to provide

 services.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 9
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

389

Question:
Will this survey be conducted monthly, annually, or some other period of time? The 

Required reports section appears to indicate quarterly reporting of satisfaction survey 

results. Perhaps every 90 days after a member is enrolled into case management?

Response:
See question # 391.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 9
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

390

Question:
Are there predetermined parameters for performing the member satisfaction survey? (i.e., 

random sample, stratified, frequency of survey etc.)

Response:
No. The contractor should prepare a plan for DHS approval.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.4, bullet 9
p.
339
Contractor Responsibilities

391

Question:
Is the member survey done of all members periodically, i.e., annually, or is a survey 

completed at the time of each encounter with the case manager?

Response:
An annual survey of a statistically valid sample is anticipated.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.6, bullet 2
p.
339
Required Reports

392

Question:
In comparing “funding prior to and after receiving case management,” what will be the 

baseline year(s) and costs for such determinations and reporting?

Response:
The vendor should propose a plan for determining these.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.7, bullet 3
p.
340
Performance Standards

393

Question:
What kind of errors with case management is the State expecting?

Response:
DHS does not expect errors, but system process and documentation errors could occur 

and the contractor is required to identify and correct them.

RFP Section
6.2.2.5.7, bullet 4
p.
340
Performance Standards

394

Question:
Please describe or provide samples and frequency of required reports.

Response:
The vendor should propose a format for these quarterly reports.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.2.2
p.
341and 342
Interfaces With External Entities

395

Question:
Please clarify the role of the Medical Services component vendor as it relates to providing

reports to external entities. This appears to be in conflict with the responsibility of the 

Core MMIS component vendor.

Response:
The Core MMIS vendor will generate reports to medical services upon request. The 

Medical Services vendor is responsible for defining need and distribution with DHS 

approval.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.3
p.
342
State Responsibilities

396

Question:
Please describe the EPSDT care coordination activities provided by the Iowa Department 

of Public Health.

Response:
Informing and Care Coordination services facilitate access to care for Medicaid eligible 

children.  The program emphasizes comprehensive care and collaboration with other 

providers to assure medical, dental, vision and hearing care, immunizations, lab tests and 

health education.  The program is a proven process designed to support families and 

facilitate achievement and maintenance of optimal health in children.  To accomplish 

desired results, service providers encourage families to understand and participate in the 

program by:

•
Supporting families in making informed health care choices based on needs;

•
Teaching families to manage care coordination activities;

•
Assisting families to establish and maintain a medical home; 

•
Encouraging continuity of care;

•
Decreasing fragmentation and duplication of care; and

•
Educating families regarding child health to promote positive health beliefs, attitudes and

 behaviors.

Informing:  Local Iowa Department of Human Services (IDHS) offices maintain 

responsibility for informing of newly eligible families with children in foster care and 

families enrolled in Medically Needy with Spend-down programs.  Informing all other 

newly eligible Medicaid families is the responsibility of the Iowa Department of Public 

Health (IDPH) designated agencies.  

Care Coordination: The local IDHS performs activities of care coordination for families on 

the Medically Needy with Spend-down program and children in foster care.  Health 

Maintenance Organizations (HMOs) are responsible to assure that families covered by 

them receive EPSDT Care for Kids services.  The remainder of Medicaid families eligible 

for the EPSDT Care for Kids program receives care coordination through the IDPH 

designated agency.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.3
p.
342
State Responsibilities

397

Question:
Will the Iowa Department of Public Health continue to inform new Title XIX eligibles of 

EPSDT and care coordination activities as part of the IME?

Response:
Yes.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.3, bullet 3
p.
342
State Responsibilities

398

Question:
Please clarify the role of the Medical Services component vendor as it relates to providing

 a report for members who have requested service but for whom there is no indication of 

service provided. This appears to be in conflict with the responsibility of the Core MMIS 

component vendor.

Response:
The Core MMIS system needs to produce the report and the Medical Services contractor 

does the follow-up.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.1, 
p.
343
EPSDT Care Coordination

bullet 3

399

Question:
"Assemble and coordinate the service care planning and interdisciplinary team for the 

PDN & PCA services provided to the special needs children under EPSDT".  Please clarify

"assemble and coordinate".  Is the state asking for the Medical Service contractor to 

facilitate the planning and care delivery or actually convene the team and actively 

participate in the care planning process?

Response:
Schedule and conduct telephone conference calls with families, case managers, providers,

and other parties when there are PA requests that have outstanding issues or if the case 

manager requests a conference in order to understand an issue.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.1, 
p.
343
EPSDT Care Coordination

bullet 4

400

Question:
What is the current volume of these prior authorizations?

Response:
The current monthly average PA requests received by medical review for Private Duty 

Nursing and Personal Care is 35.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.1, 
p.
343
EPSDT Care Coordination

bullet 5

401

Question:
Please provide a listing of Child Health Specialty Clinic (CHSC) locations statewide and a 

listing of services available.

Response:
Burlington, Carroll, Council Bluffs, Creston, Davenport, Des Moines, Dubuque, Fort 

Dodge, Iowa City, Mason City, Ottumwa, Sioux City, Spencer, Waterloo.  Services 

include: clinical care and care coordination services.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.1, 
p.
343
EPSDT Care Coordination

bullet 7

402

Question:
Please define the State’s expectation regarding “service facilitation” of the service care 

plan.

Response:
Assisting the case manager in ensuring that PAs and case plans are implemented 

appropriately with no break in authorized services.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.2
p.
344
EPSDT Tracking and Reporting

403

Question:
While we understand that all activity, particularly reporting, require coordination between 

vendors, it is important that the responsibilities are clearly delineated.  Please clarify the 

Medical Services vendor role for defining, developing, requesting, producing, and 

distributing these reports.

Response:
The MMIS generates reports based on criteria developed by the Medical Services 

vendor.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.2, 
p.
344
EPSDT Tracking and Reporting

5.2.2.14 and 

others

404

Question:
In the Professional Services components, there are several requirements for generation of 

reports to DHS.  These requirements appear to be based upon data that is stored in the 

core MMIS system.  For example, section 6.6.2.6.4.2 requires the Professional services 

contractor to generate EPSDT reports.  Section 5.2.2.14 requires the Core MMIS 

contractor to produce EPSDT reports.  Please clarify the division of responsibilities 

between Professional Services contractors and Systems contractors for reporting that is 

based upon data stored in the Core MMIS system.

Response:
The professional services contractor will define the reports and set parameters. The Core 

MMIS will produce the reports.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.6
p.
344
Required Reports

405

Question:
Please clarify the role of the Medical Services component vendor as it relates to providing

 these reports. This appears to be in conflict with the responsibility of the Core MMIS 

component vendor.

Response:
The MMIS generates reports based on criteria developed by the Medical Services 

vendor.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.7
p.
345
Performance Standards

406

Question:
Please clarify the role of the Medical Services component vendor as it relates to the 

production report performance standards.  Reports generated from data in the MMIS are 

dependent on the performance of the Core MMIS vendor and the data center.

Response:
 It is the Medical Services vendor’s responsibility to have data in the system timely so the

 MMIS system can generate reports.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.7
p.
345
Performance Standards

407

Question:
The RFP states in item #4 ‘Make PA decisions within 5 working days of receiving the 

completed PA and supporting documentation.’  What is the performance standard 

currently or, if none currently exists, what is the average time for approving a PA?

Response:
The performance standard today is 5 working days and is being met.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7
p.
345
Prior Authorization

408

Question:
Is there a current contractor conducting PA for pharmacy services?  If so, what is the 

name of the contractor?

Response:
Yes, ACS performs pharmacy prior authorization.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7
p.
345
Prior Authorization

409

Question:
This question applies to the Medical Services Component.  Is there an existing Prior 

Authorization (PA) system, within the MMIS that is being migrated to the Department's 

data center, that the Medical Services contractor will be expected to utilize, or could 

utilize?  If yes, does this existing PA system cover both pharmacy and non-pharmacy 

services?

Response:
Yes to both questions.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7
p.
345
Prior Authorization

410

Question:
Are there state regulations or other specific requirements for the contractor who provides 

pharmacy prior authorization services, for example URAC certification?

Response:
There are not any state regulations for the contractor who provides pharmacy prior 

authorization services. The specific contractor requirements for pharmacy prior 

authorization are included in the RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7
p.
345
Prior Authorization

411

Question:
Because URAC does not provide pharmacy specific certification, if URAC certification is 

required, does the state offer any alternatives to URAC certification?

Response:
No certification is required so this is not applicable.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.1
p.
331
Objectives

412

Question:
PA requirements #1 states "currently includes..." Does the state anticipate a change in the

 scope of services requiring PA?  If so, please indicate how and what changes are 

anticipated along with anticipated review volumes.

Response:
The Department is amenable to expanding the services requiring PA based on criteria 

such as cost and utilization if it can be shown to effectively control services. The 

contractor should suggest the manner and mechanism by which costs can be controlled 

and services utilized effectively.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.2.2
p.
347
Interfaces With External Entities

413

Question:
Is there a current application that is being used to interface with the Providers, ISIS & 

IFMC?  If so, will that application still be there for the contractor to use?  Is it HIPAA 

compliant or does the contractor have to create a new application to perform the services 

for the Prior Authorizations?

Response:
The application used to transfer data from IFMC is the file transfer protocol (FTP).  The 

data mechanism used to transfer data to ISIS and to the MMIS from ISIS is 

Connect:Direct. Providers use a wide variety of mechanisms to send and receive 

information to and from the MMIS: tape, cartridge, via the web, dial up connection, and 

dedicated lines. The level of care is entered directly to the ISIS system by IFMC for 

waivers. The level of care for nursing homes is transferred to the Title XIX system via a 

batch file transfer. These are not HIPAA transactions.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.2.2
p.
347
Interfaces With External Entities

414

Question:
Are the external interface partners all HIPAA compliant?  Are they currently receiving this

 information in the 278 format?

Response:
DHS does not believe that the care plan for waiver services and the level of care 

determination are HIPAA covered transactions because ISIS is an internal Department 

system interface and IFMC is a business associate entering data directly into the ISIS 

system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
348
Contractor Responsibilities

415

Question:
Services needing PA -Please provide a breakdown of the average monthly other medical 

prior authorizations in Attachment M by type of service.

Response:
The majority of these are prior authorizations for durable medical equipment and medical 

supplies. No detail breakdown is available.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
348
Contractor Responsibilities

416

Question:
Will IFMC continue to conduct PA for selected surgical and inpatient hospital admissions

 after this contract is awarded, or is this service part of the scope of this RFP?

Response:
IFMC will continue to do pre-procedure reviews for some surgical procedures such as 

gastric bypass and transplants.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
349
Contractor Responsibilities

417

Question:
Please clarify whether the “targeted case management” services to be prior authorized by 

the contractor are for all such procedures not prior authorized by the Iowa Foundation for 

Medical Care.  How does DHS anticipate such coordination between the contractor and 

the Iowa Foundation for Medical Care to occur?

Response:
Targeted Case Management services for the Mental Retardation and Developmental 

Disability populations are prior authorized. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
349
Contractor Responsibilities

418

Question:
For each type of service (medical through targeted case management), what is the volume 

of PA’s provided historically?  Is this volume anticipated to increase? If so, by how 

much?

Response:
Refer to RFP Section 10.13 (Attachment M, pg 579) for historical volume.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
349
Contractor Responsibilities

419

Question:
Please clarify that the “psychological services” to be prior authorized by the contractor 

are for all such procedures not prior authorized by the Iowa Plan contractor (i.e. 

identification of potential task overlap).

Response:
Psychological services are not prior authorized. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
349
Contractor Responsibilities

420

Question:
Please clarify that the “medical services” to be prior authorized by the contractor are for 

all other medical procedures not prior authorized by the Iowa Foundation for Medical 

Care.  Will the Iowa Foundation for Medical Care be providing its contracted prior 

authorization services throughout the term of the IME?  If not, when is their next contract 

renewal date.

Response:
All medical services prior authorizations will be done by the Medical Services contractor. 

See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4
p.
351
Contractor Responsibilities

421

Question:
a. Will the Medical Services contractor be required to send or receive any other ANSI 

transaction sets, besides the X12 278?  If so, which of the following sets?  X12 270/271, 

Healthcare Eligibility Benefit Inquiry and Response, X12 275, Claims Attachment, X12 
276/277, Healthcare Claims Status Request and Response, X12 820, Premium Payment, X12 834, HMO Enrollment and Disenrollment, X12 835, Claims Payment and Remittance 

Advice, X12 837, Healthcare Claim or Encounter  b. Are the Pharmacy POS prior 

authorizations ANSI X12?  If not, please specify format.  c. Because the MMIS 

component is required to receive ANSI X12 transaction sets and because business 

associate agreements will be in place for the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise contractors, can 

the MMIS component receive ANSI X12 278 transactions on behalf of the Medical 

Services component and translate the ANSI X12 278 transactions to a simpler, more 

usable format before sending data on to the Medical Services component systems?  Or, 

alternatively, is it possible for the MMIS component and the Medical Services component

 to share the ANSI translator software?

Response:
All HIPAA transactions other than pharmacy POS claims transactions would be received 

and have processing initiated by the Core MMIS contractor.  Upon receipt, the Contractor

for the MMIS will work out the interfaces necessary  to channel transactions to/from 

other IME contractors.  At this stage, they are not HIPAA-covered transactions. HIPAA 

required transactions appropriately sent by providers to the Contractors which are to 

receive them must be received in HIPAA format and returned to the providers in HIPAA 

format.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1, 
p.
349
Prior Authorization Processing

bullet 4

422

Question:
For emergency requests, arrange for an on-call professional 24/7.   Please define what 

would constitute an "emergency request" and the scope of services for which this would 

apply.

Response:
See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1, 
p.
349
Prior Authorization Processing

bullet 9

423

Question:
Please clarify the purpose of sending a copy of the Request for PA form with the Decision

 Notice.  The provider would have a copy of the document and the Decision Notice would

 provide sufficient information to clearly identify the request and reason for the decision.

Response:
The notice to the member provides information on their appeal rights.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1
p.
349
Prior Authorization Processing

424

Question:
The RFP states in item #4 ‘For emergency requests, arrange for an on-call professional to 

be reached 24 hours per day, 7 days per week through a pager system.’  An on-call 

professional would need several items to approve a PA – access to the MMIS files; 

documentation of the PA request; supporting documentation; and maybe review by a 

peer consultant.  How does the State envision that the on-call professional would get 

access to all of the necessary information?  What would constitute an emergency PA 

under this requirement?

Response:
See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1, 
p.
349
Prior Authorization Processing

bullets 1 and 4

425

Question:
Are any prior authorizations requests received and adjudicated via telephone?  How many

 prior authorizations are anticipated to be received by each media type:  paper, facsimile, 

electronically, and telephone (if applicable)?

Response:
Currently Drug PAs are done by telephone.  With RFP  MED-04-034 these will be done by

 fax, mail, and electronically using the HIPAA 278 transaction.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1 and 
p.
349 and 352
Prior Authorization Processing

6.2.2.7.4.3

426

Question:
Does the Component 4 (Medical Services) vendor or the Component 2 (Pharmacy POS) 

vendor provide the prior authorization software and files that are updated by the 

Component 4 (Medical Services) vendor for pharmacy prior authorizations for the PDL 

and non-PDL POS pharmacy claims requiring prior authorization?

Response:
The Core MMIS will maintain the prior authorization system that will be used for all PAs. 

The Pharmacy POS vendor will need to access the PA records directly from the MMIS or 

will need to develop a batch interface to transfer pharmacy PA data to the POS system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1, 
p.
350
Prior Authorization Processing

bullet 9

427

Question:
For the PA process, the contractor will be required to send notices to members and 

providers.  Should the bidder budget for mailing expenses, or will these costs be covered 

by the state--postage, stationery, and printing?

Response:
All of these costs will be covered by the State.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.2
p.
351
Prior Authorization File Maintenance

428

Question:
Will the data set for prior authorization be part of the new MMIS, or will the contractor be 

responsible for developing a tracking system separate from the MMIS?

Response:
The Core MMIS maintains PA system. Tracking of PAs from receipt through disposition 

will be done by the Workflow Process Management system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.2, 
p.
352
Prior Authorization File Maintenance

bullets 6 and 9

429

Question:
Is the source system of record for Membership and Provider that will feed the PA 

application, the core MMIS application or the Eligibility & Provider applications of the 

Professional Services Component?

Response:
The Core MMIS will be the source system.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.3
p.
352
Prior Authorization for PDL

430

Question:
Please identify Iowa Medicaid’s current Pharmacy Benefit Manager (PBM).

Response:
Iowa Medicaid does not currently have a PBM.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8
p.
355
Quality of Care

431

Question:
Please clarify whether these quality of care activities will not be performed for the fee-for-

service population.  If not, what activities are expected to be performed for quality of care 

for this population?

Response:
At this time it is only for the programs listed.  The bidder may suggest the manner and 

mechanism by which such quality initiatives may be implemented in the fee for service 

population.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.2
p.
355
Interfaces

432

Question:
During the Operations Phase, which IME contractor or external organization will be 

monitoring and making available HEDIS information for use by the IME?  Will this 

information be from the Iowa Foundation for Medical Care, acting as QIO, under a 

separate contract?  Please clarify.

Response:
The Medical Services contractor will perform this function. See RFP MED-04-034. HEDIS 

will remain with University of Iowa.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.2.1, 
p.
356
Interfaces With Other Iowa Medicaid Enterprise 

bullets 1 and 2

433

Question:
Will the interfaces with the internal and external entities require any transactions to be 

sent in the HIPAA format?  The 278-transaction was referenced for the authorization 

requests; will the feeds into or out of the PA application require any other code sets?

Response:
No, the contractor will utilize MMIS data maintained in the Core MMIS.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.2.2, 
p.
356
Interfaces With External Entities

bullet 3

434

Question:
Please clarify whether the “hawk-i” S-CHIP program will also be reviewed under the 

quality of care activities under this contract.

Response:
The hawk-i program is not part of Medicaid. See question # 19.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

435

Question:
Does the State identify any inherent conflicts within the scopes of work for a single 

contractor to perform the duties and functions of more than one component of the RFP?

Response:
No.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

436

Question:
The RFP references in the last bullet in item #1 ‘Providing the phone connection to the 

HMOs …’.  Please provide additional detail on this requirement.

Response:
Teleconferences are held periodically with each HMO along with this contractor and DHS.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

437

Question:
Please clarify the phone connection required to the HMOs.

Response:
See response to question # 436.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4, bullet 
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

1, #3

438

Question:
Are the HMO’s required to ensure provider panel adequacy? It appears that the rest of 

the section describes more of a monitoring and reporting process for network adequacy. 

Please comment.

Response:
Yes. The bidder should be prepared to verify the adequacy of the contracted panel 

members when directed to do so by the Department. Yes, this should be done quarterly 

for each HMO.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4, bullet 
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

1, #5

439

Question:
How frequent are these surveys required? How expansive? If any of these surveys have 

been conducted in the past, can the (de-identified) results be made public as part of this 

RFP process?

Response:
Appointment surveys are conducted quarterly for 20 randomly selected MediPASS 

providers to determine the length of time it would take for recipients to get routine care, 

physical examination, immunizations, etc.  They are not expansive in nature but are 

designed to identify provider who may have issues with providing access for services to 

Medicaid recipients.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4, bullet 
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

1, #9

440

Question:
The analysis of encounter data can be a costly and time consuming process. Has the 

State conducted any encounter data validation studies? If so, can the (de-identified) 

results be made public as part of this RFP process? If no study has been conducted, we 

request further elaboration on this potentially very significant contractual requirement.

Response:
Managed Care Organizations are required to submit encounter data on a monthly basis.  

The contractor should have edits in place that confirm that the ED is technically accurate 

to within 99%.  Every quarter 50 medical records are randomly pulled from providers (with 

the assistance of the MCOs) and verification is made that the encounter submitted 

matches that reported through the medical record.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4, bullet 
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

1, #11

441

Question:
Please elaborate on the provision of a “phone connection” to the HMOs.

Response:
See question # 436.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4, bullet 2
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

442

Question:
If the activities to be performed under this requirement (or any requirement /task) are 

subject to negotiation subsequent to contract award, then will the contractor’s Cost 

Proposal also be re-opened for adjustment to reflect the additional work to be performed?  

How will the Change Service Request process be utilized in such circumstances?

Response:
The bidder should provide  its plan for meeting the requirement in the technical proposal. 

The cost proposal should reflect the proposed plan.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4.2
p.
357
Contractor Responsibilities

443

Question:
Please provide the frequency for performing utilization review, quality assurance, 

grievance resolution, data collection, technical analysis, and reporting for the HMOs and 

MediPASS providers.

Response:
Performance will be continuous with reporting quarterly. See question # 442.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4, bullet 5
p.
358
Contractor Responsibilities

444

Question:
Please define level of participation and scope of "Federal review" activity.

Response:
CMS will periodically review the managed care programs in Iowa.  The contractor is 

expected to support its activities at the time of the review and respond to any questions 

that might arise.  In addition, the contractor will assist the state in the development of 

responses to any questions that might arise from this or any other federal review.

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.4.5
p.
358
Contractor Responsibilities

445

Question:
Please provide the frequency for performing these tasks for Iowa Plan participants.

Response:
This section deals with HMOs and MediPASS which are medical managed care services.  

The Iowa Plan operates slightly differently in that the same level and scope of activities 

are not necessary.  However, the Contractor will be expected to assist the Department in 

the provision of oversight in the Iowa Plan as follows: 

Bullet 1:

Ongoing

Bullet 2:

Every Other Year

Bullet 3:

Quarterly

Bullet 4:

Every Other Year

Bullet 5:

As directed by DHS, and may me monthly

Bullet 6:

Unlikely to occur

Bullet 7:

Unlikely to occur

Bullet 8:

Unlikely to occur

Bullet 9:

Unlikely to occur

RFP Section
6.2.2.8.5
p.
358
Data Sources

446

Question:
Are the other contractors for both the core MMIS and Professional Services Components 

covered entities under HIPAA?  Meaning that data transactions between contractors for 

the state do not need to follow the HIPAA standards.

Response:
These are business associates, not covered entities, for the purposes of HIPAA.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9
p.
343
Long Term Care Assessment

447

Question:
This section appears to encompass the federally mandated PASRR Level I screening (42 

CFR 483.100) in conjunction with a level of care assessment and authorization process.  Is 

this a correct interpretation and if so what assessment tool and software is currently being

 used to do this?

Response:
It does not include PASARR.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9
p.
359
Long Term Care Assessment

448

Question:
The second paragraph in the summary indicates "Nurses" will meet.... Is this stating that 

the state requirement is for a 'nurse' to complete this function?  If so, please clarify 

credentials (RN, LPN) and other requirements.

Response:
Yes – may be an RN or LPN.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9
p.
359
Long Term Care Assessment

449

Question:
Who is responsible currently for performing the pre-admission screening for long term 

care services?  The second paragraph states:  ‘Nurses will meet with the member …”  How

 many assessments are done currently per week?  How much travel is involved since this 

is a statewide program?

Response:
The Iowa Foundation for Medical Care completes the level of care determination.  The 

assessments are completed by case managers in the field. Field staff for LTC 

Assessments are currently located around the State and travel and work from home.  This 

will be acceptable in the new contract and DHS will provide laptops.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9
p.
359
Long Term Care Assessment

450

Question:
Please provide information regarding the volume of assessments and staffing required in 

currently performing long-term care assessments.

Response:
 Nurses will be required to do the assessments.  Approximately 16, 200 nursing facility 

residents, and approximately 21, 500 other long term care residents that require 

assessments.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9
p.
361
Long Term Care Assessment

451

Question:
Based on DHS guidelines, what is the reassessment timeline (i.e., quarterly, annually)?

Response:
The initial pre-admission screening is done to determine eligibility. A second screening is 

to be completed within 90 days after the initial screening, and then annually unless there 

is a significant change in the consumer that requires a reassessment prior to the annual 

one.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.2.1 and 
p.
360 and 362
Interfaces With Other Iowa Medicaid Enterprise 

6.2.2.9.6

452

Question:
The RFP states ‘The Medical Services contractor interfaces with the Core MMIS for entry

of assessment data to the MMIS file.’  Where is this data entered into the MMIS and 

what kind of assessment data is entered?  In Section 6.2.2.9.6 on page 362 the first 

sentence references ‘The Medical Services contractor will provide the Pre-Admission 

Screening database to DHS….”  How is this different than the assessment data entered 

into the MMIS mentioned above?

Response:
This is a new activity, and is yet to be determined what will be entered.  It is expected it 

will include the assessment information, results of the assessment and the preliminary 

plan information. It may not be entered into the MMIS system, but rather a subsystem 

designed by the contractor.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.4
p.
361
Contractor Responsibilities

453

Question:
Who develops the assessment/screening tool?

Response:
The Department of Human Services.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.4.3
p.
361
Contractor Responsibilities

454

Question:
Provide historical and projected numbers or projected number of LTC clients.

Response:
Approximately 16,200 nursing home residents and other Long Term care consumers is 

approximately 21,500.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.4, bullet 5
p.
361
Contractor Responsibilities

455

Question:
 "...authorize preliminary care plan and ..." Please clarify who is responsible for developing

 the preliminary care plan.

Response:
The contractor will prepare the preliminary plan that identifies the types of services that 

are needed. The preliminary plan is provided to the case manager who adds the details of 

the specific services and the providers. This data is then entered in ISIS and transferred to

 the MMIS through a file transfer.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.5, bullet 6
p.
362
Data Sources

456

Question:
This section references software to authorize the preliminary plan.  Is it anticipated that 

the software will include the assessment tool and generate a preliminary plan of care? 

What is currently being used to do this?

Response:
Today the MDS system is used for Nursing Facilities.  The software for the assessment 

tool and to generate the preliminary plan of care will need to be developed.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.5, bullet 6
p.
362
Data Sources

457

Question:
Is there a current application that is being used to facilitate this function that has already 

been approved by DHS?

Response:
The MDS is currently used for nursing facilities. There are separate assessment tools for 

the waiver population, but these are prepared manually. The pre-admission screening is a 

new process. The contractor should propose a tool or propose an approach to the 

development of the tool.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.6
p.
362
Required Reports

458

Question:
Please provide operational, hardware and software information regarding the State’s 

current Pre-Admission Screening database.  Is it the State’s expectation that the 

contractor will be able to take over this existing database?

Response:
The pre-admission screening is a new process. The contractor will need to develop the 

database.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.7
p.
363
Performance Standards

459

Question:
The RFP states in item #5 ‘Enter pre-screening and reassessments requests requiring a 

peer review into ISIS within 3 business days…’  What is ISIS?  How is this different from 

entering assessment data into the MMIS; pre-admission screening database, etc.?  Please 

explain in more detail.

Response:
The contractor provides the preliminary service plan with the types of service needed to 

the case manager. The case manager adds details for the specific services and providers 

and enters the plan into ISIS. ISIS is the Iowa Department of Human Services 

Individualized Services Information System. The purpose of ISIS is to assist workers in 

the facility and waiver programs in both processing and tracking requests starting with 

entry from the Automated Benefits Calculation (ABC) system through approval and 

denial. Consumer records are tracked in ISIS until that consumer is no longer accessing a 

facility or waiver program. Specific service plan information is entered by the worker and 

authorized through ISIS. Any change in the service plan is also authorized through ISIS. 

Upon individual approval, ISIS provides the Medicaid fiscal agent with service plan 

information or facility eligibility and authority to make accurate payments to providers of 

facility or waiver services.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.7, bullet 1
p.
363
Performance Standards

460

Question:
This standard is to be met “within five (5) working days” of what event?

Response:
Within 5 working days of receipt of the application.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10
p.
363
Case Mix Audits

461

Question:
Please identify the current contractor performing case mix audits.  How many case mix 

audits are performed annually statewide?

Response:
The Iowa foundation for Medical Care currently performs 3,500 case mix audits annually. 

This requirement has been deleted. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10
p.
365
Case Mix Audits

462

Question:
Who is currently responsible for performing case mix audits?  How many audits are done 

annually?  Please explain how the Medical Services contractor interfaces with the Provider

 Cost Audits and Rate setting component for the case mix audit function and the 

Department of Inspections and Appeals.

Response:
This requirement has been deleted. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10.7
p.
363
Performance Standards

463

Question:
How many certified nursing facilities does the State currently contract with?

Response:
440.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10.7
p.
366
Performance Standards

464

Question:
Is the report referenced in item #1 produced by the MMIS?  If not, please explain.

Response:
This function has been deleted. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10.7, 
p.
366
Performance Standards

bullet 1

465

Question:
How many certified nursing facilities are there in Iowa, and where are they located?

Response:
440 throughout Iowa.  Refer to DIA web site @ www.DIA.state.ia.us; the health facility 

section lists all facilities  by county.
SET 2

RFP Section
6.1
p.
291
General Requirements For All Professional Services 

Components

93

Question:
The RFP states that “All Professional Services contractors will have access to the DHS 

Data Warehouse.”  It also states that “Professional Services contractors will be required 

to obtain the requisite staff with skill at querying Medicaid-related data and preparing 

reports for contractor and State use.”  Page 285; Section 5.4.2.4 under the DSS component

requires “Provide four full time technical analysts … to prepare specifications and 

produce reports of a more complex nature.”  Will the other component vendors have 

access to the DSS analysts to run queries and reports for them or must each component 

vendor hire Business Analysts?

Response:
The DW/DS contractor will provide operations staff to assist IME users in developing 

queries. Each component should designate a primary contact for developing queries and 

requesting assistance. See Amendment 4.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
292
Key Personnel To Be Named

94

Question:
The RFP states that the named positions for the Professional Services Component 

contractors include Account Manager and an Implementation Manager which “(May be 

same as Project Manager).”  Should this state: “(May be same as Account Manager)”?  

Some Professional Services Components may only have a small staff.  What is the 

purpose of two Operations Managers for each of these components in addition to an 

Account Manager?  How will their duties differ?

Response:
Yes, it should read “May be same as Account Manager.” See Amendment 4. The bidder 

must have someone designated as the responsible person (key staff) in the absence of the

Account Manager as a designated backup. If the staff is small and the contractor 

responsibilities are such that a single operations manager has the knowledge and 

expertise to manage all functions, DHS will consider the bidder's proposal to have one 

operations manager. The contractor must have enough staff to meet the performance 

requirements.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
294
Key Personnel To Be Named

95

Question:
The Account Manager and Implementation Manager both require a Bachelor’s degree.  

Could management experience in the health care operations be consider equivalent to the 

Bachelor’s degree or is the Bachelor’s Degree a definite requirement?

Response:
Yes, if the bidder can show the relevance of the experience to the position for which a 

person is proposed. No extra points will be given for Iowa-specific experience. See 

Amendment 4.

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
294
Key Personnel To Be Named

96

Question:
Can significant, management-level experience directly related to the Iowa Medicaid 

program be substituted for the educational requirement?

Response:
See question # 95.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
296
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

97

Question:
Please clarify our understanding that DHS will reimburse contractors for temporary office 

space beyond January 1, 2005 as necessary if the permanent co-location facility is not yet 

available.

Response:
See Amendment 4.

RFP Section
6.1.2.1
p.
298
Temporary Offices during Implementation Phase

98

Question:
This paragraph states that if the contingency plan for temporary office space is activated 

the State will reimburse the contractor for applicable leasing fees.  Does this include 

reimbursement for all associated fees such as utilities, communication costs, equipment 

rental, and other costs associated with maintaining and operating the temporary facility?  

Likewise, will the contractor be reimbursed for the costs related to providing a 

contingency site if that site is never activated?

Response:
See Amendment 4.

RFP Section
6.1.2.2.1
p.
296
State Responsibilities

99

Question:
Please provide a detailed description and/or diagram of the network infrastructure, 

network connections and personal computer hardware that will be made available by the 

State to the contractors beginning January 1, 2005.

Response:
See Attachment B in Response to Bidders Questions Set 1 for the network diagram. See 

Amendment 4 for date change.

RFP Section
6.1.4.2.2
p.
302
System Design Activity

100

Question:
Will the contractor be responsible for creating new procedure manuals or will the existing 

manuals be revised?

Response:
The existing procedures manuals are in the Bidders Library. It is anticipated that the new 

vendor would begin with these manuals and enhance or update the manuals to meet any 

new requirements or processing procedures brought forth by contractors.

RFP Section
6.2
p.
321
Medical Services Component

101

Question:
For each of the nine primary tasks required under the Medical Services component, please

 provide cost information and intensity of resource allocations currently expended by the 

incumbents to perform these tasks (e.g. number and types of FTEs, hours needed to 

complete and monthly charges from the past 2 years billed to the State for each).

Response:
See the current contractor's organization chart, contract, and invoices in the Bidders 

Library.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.2.2
p.
324
Interfaces With External Entities

102

Question:
This indicates that Medical Support staff may send policy clarifications to selected 

provider groups.  This appears to conflict with the activities of the Provider Relations 

component.  Please clarify the responsibilities so both component vendors will 

understand their roles.  If Medical Services is to send out policy clarifications, please 

provide the frequency, volume and distribution method of these policy clarifications for 

staffing and costing purposes.

Response:
Medical support staff will prepare the policy clarification and identify the provider groups 

as needed, and the Provider Services staff will review for format, obtain DHS approval, 

and arrange for distribution. Provider informational releases have been added to the 

Bidders Library.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 7

103

Question:
Please provide the average monthly volume of claims that require manual review and the 

current list of rules that trigger this review.

Response:
At any given time, there are approximately 30,000 claims in suspense awaiting review for 

one or more edits assigned by MMIS.  Based on the month of December 2003, there are 

approximately 111,000 computer edits force paid or denied.  The rules that trigger a review 

are the MMIS system edits.  These edits (exception codes) are part of the MMIS system 

documentation.  Please refer to the Bidder’s Library for a copy of the Exception Control 

Summary Listing.  This listing shows the edit number (exception code) along with a brief 

explanation of the reason (exception description).

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 6

104

Question:
Does the State have an anticipated volume of staff hours required for these hearings to 

provide expert testimony?

Response:
The average number of hours per year is 140 hours spent in appeal hearings. This does 

not include preparation time.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 14

105

Question:
The RFP indicates the medical services contractor will be required to provide support for 

the pharmaceutical case management program, which may include Pharmacy Help Desk 

functions.  a. Please clarify the function of the Pharmacy Help Desk. b. Does the state 

anticipate that calls to the Pharmacy Help Desk will come from health care providers, 

Medicaid members or both?

Response:
The requirements have been revised.  Refer to RFP MED-04-034 for the revisions. See 

amendment to Section 5.3.2.2.4 in Amendment 4  for Pharmacy Help Desk functions.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
326
General Medical Support

bullet 14

106

Question:
Please clarify the expectation surrounding the Pharmacy Help Desk function. Will the 

contractor be required to staff this Help Desk?

Response:
See question # 105.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 14

107

Question:
Please describe in detail the tasks and DHS’ expectations regarding support of the 

Pharmacy Help Desk functions.  What integration of activities is anticipated?  Is the 

Pharmacy Help Desk a requirement of the pharmacy POS component?  If yes, what types 

of systems integration and personnel training will be required of the contractor to support

 this function?

Response:
See question # 105.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 14

108

Question:
The RFP states in item #14 ‘Provide support for the pharmaceutical case management 

program, as required by DHS.  Program support in this area may include Pharmacy Help 

Desk functions.’  Would this requirement be better suited in the Pharmacy Component 

which also mentions a Help Desk?  Please explain the Division of responsibilities.  How 

many calls does this Help Desk receive per day?

Response:
See question # 105.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 14

109

Question:
Please provide a synopsis of Iowa’s current pharmaceutical case management program.

Response:
This program allows providers to better manage the drug therapy of at-risk patients by 

using physician and pharmacist teams.  For example: These teams could work together to 

improve treatment and monitoring of chronic asthmatics to decrease frequency of urgent 

care visits and optimized drug therapy. See the CSR 214 for this program in the Bidders 

Library.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
327
General Medical Support

bullet 14

110

Question:
Does the term “support” mean actually operating and conducting “pharmaceutical case 

management” as defined for the Program?  If not, is case management done by the 

Pharmacy POS component vendor?  Please itemize the specific Pharmacy Help Desk 

functions performed by the Component 4 (Medical Services) vendor versus those 

performed by the Component 2 (Pharmacy POS) vendor.

Response:
See question # 105.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 
p.
327
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

bullet 3

111

Question:
Please provide a copy of DHS’ current pharmacy prior authorization guidelines.

Response:
See Bidders Library.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 
p.
327
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

bullet 4

112

Question:
Please describe the current process followed by the P&T Committee and DHS.

Response:
The P&T committee adopts rules. See rules and agendas in the Bidders Library. See RFP 

MED-04-034 for the requirements.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 
p.
328
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

bullet 10, #2

113

Question:
Is there a current website that hosts the information for the P&T meetings and related 

information?

Response:
No there is not a website for P&T Committee information currently. Subject to DHS 

approval, the contractor is responsible for developing and maintaining a website.  The 

P&T Committee By-Laws and agendas are available in the Bidder's Library.


RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.2, 11, 
p.
329, 350, 
Preferred Drug List (PDL) Maintenance

6.2.2.7.4.1, 9 
384, 385, 

and 10, 
385, 400

6.3.2.4.1

114

Question:
Many of the components require mailings and forms that are distributed to providers 

and/or members.  While it is important for each component vendor to develop the 

materials, would the State consider having the actual mailing process done by one 

component vendor?  The incoming mail is centrally managed and it may be more cost 

effective to also centralize the staff and equipment for the outgoing mail.

Response:
All outgoing mail will go through the IME mailroom, including regular daily mail and small 

volume mailings. For large volume mailings DHS will identify the most cost-effective way 

to mail. The Core MMIS contractor will be responsible for the mailings and DHS will pay 

postage costs. See amendment to Sections 5.1.2.3 and 6.1.2.3 in Amendment 4.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.2.2, 
p.
332
Interfaces With External Entities

bullet 2

115

Question:
Please identify the “separate contractor used to analyze data for disease management 

program.”  Will this contractor be participating as an IME contractor?

Response:
The interface noted in 6.2.2.3.2 speaks to any "outside contractor" that the medical 

services contractor may use to analyze data.  The above question regarding 6.2.2.3.2.2, 

bullet 2, speaks to that contractor who would be an “outside contractor” used by the 

successful bidder to analyze data.  Because this is a sub-contractor to the medical 

services contractor, it has not yet been identified.

RFP Section
6.2.2.3.4, bullet 8
p.
333
Contractor Responsibilities

116

Question:
Please elaborate on this expectation of prior authorization before undertaking any 

communication with members or providers.

Response:
All materials delivered to any Medicaid eligible must have the prior approval of the 

Department.

RFP Section
6.2.2.6.4.1, 
p.
343
EPSDT Care Coordination

bullet 6

117

Question:
The timeframe for processing all other new requests are stated as "within the standards 

required by DHS".  This is not defined in the performance standards.  Please define.  Also,

 the timeframe for processing requests for private duty and personal care are stated as 

"immediately".  This is not defined in the performance standards.  Please define.

Response:
If a child new to the PA services is referred and hospital discharge planning is occurring 

the decisions should be within 24 hours (next working day) if there is a case manager to 

work with.  There is sometimes a delay to determine if there is a case manager/service 

worker already assigned or if that needs to occur.  After receipt of a regular PA and the 

supporting documentation decisions should be made within 5 working days. See 

Amendment 4.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.1, 
p.
350
Prior Authorization Processing

bullet 14

118

Question:
What PA reports (and frequency) are currently provided to DHS?

Response:
See the Detailed System Design for prior authorization in the Bidders Library.

RFP Section
6.2.2.7.4.2
p.
350 to 352
Prior Authorization File Maintenance

119

Question:
Please clarify whether the prior authorization component of the MMIS meets the 

requirements in this section.  For example, does it maintain detailed audit trail reports of all

changes to PA records?  Is it expected that the Medical Services vendor will use the 

MMIS to enter and process prior authorization requests.

Response:
Yes to both questions. See the Detailed System Design in the Bidders Library for current 

functionality.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9
p.
359 to 363
Long Term Care Assessment

120

Question:
Has DHS selected a universal pre-admission screening tool?  If so, will DHS provide a 

copy of the tool to the potential bidders?

Response:
DHS had not determined a universal pre-admission screening tool to date. This is a new 

process.  Currently use assessment tools that IFMC uses to determine level of care. This 

will be included in the new Medical Services contract. Prior to level of care determination. 

Pre-admission screen done first, then assessment, then LOC determination. Bidder should 

propose  a tool or a plan to develop a tool to collect all of the data and perform the 

assessment.  See samples of current assessment tools in the Bidders Library.

RFP Section
6.2.2.9.7
p.
363
Performance Standards

121

Question:
Performance standards #3 & #4 describe referral services not discussed in the scope of 

contractor responsibility.  These referral functions could be inferred from the external 

interaction section.  Please clarify.

Response:
#3 – Referrals are made to DHS eligibility worker. #4 – If the consumer is eligible for 

Medicaid – a referral is made to the case manager. See RFP MED-04-034.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10.2.2
p.
364
Interfaces With External Entities

122

Question:
Please provide a listing of Interfaces with External Entities (was left blank).

Response:
See RFP MED-04-034. Section 6.2.2.10 has been deleted.

RFP Section
6.2.2.10.4.1
p.
365
Contractor Responsibilities

123

Question:
Provide current number of facilities and average day or hours per visit.

Response:
This section has been deleted. See RFP MED-04-034.
SET 3

RFP Section
6.1.1.1
p.
293
Key Personnel To Be Named

19

Question:
Question Set 1, # 260:

Will the state allow the contractor to reassign key personnel prior to the mandatory start 

date as required by the RFP?  For instance, can the named person for the Operations 

Manager position be reassigned prior to January 1, 2005?

Response:
No.

RFP Section
6.1.2.3
p.
297
Courier Service

20

Question:
Amendment 4, # 64:

Does this amendment to the RFP apply to the printing and mailing requirements in the 

Provider Publications (6.3.2.4, p. 383-388) of the RFP?  Confirm that the Provider Services 

Contractor is only responsible for providing a print-ready copy of all provider 

publications to DHS or the printer selected by DHS and the Core MMIS vendor or entity 

selected by the DHS does the mailing of those publications.

Response:
Yes, a process will be developed during the start-up phase with contractors who are 

responsible for providing items to be printed and mailed. The process will include the 

development of a form for submission with the print-ready copy that identifies information

such as the number of copies to be printed, who the publication should be mailed to, any 

mailing labels that may be needed,  and any other requirements for printing and mailing.

RFP Section
6.1.2.3.1
p.
298
Contractor Responsibilities

21

Question:
Question Set 1, # 275:

The cost proposal section (10.11.3) pricing table 3a, asks us to identify computer, 

software, and equipment costs by year for items that are not provided by the state.  

Question #275 states that “the State will purchase the licenses.  These costs should not 

be included in the bidder’s proposal.”  This appears to be in conflict.  Please clarify.

Response:
These costs should be included in the cost proposal as specified in the amendment to 

section 10.11.3 in Amendment # 4.  These costs will be deducted from the fixed price for 

payment purposes if DHS approves the acquisition of the items.

RFP Section
6.1.4.2.2
p.
301
System Design Activity

22

Question:
Question Set 1, # 285:

In your response you say that the contractor will be using existing applications..."  Please 

confirm that all systems functionality required by each Professional Services Component 

will be provided by the State and that only operational enhancements that bidders might 

offer would require their own systems.

Response:
Yes, the MMIS will provide the functionality. Bidders may propose systems that would 

enhance their ability to meet the requirements in the RFP.

RFP Section
6.2.2.2.4.1, 
p.
56 and 58
General Medical Support

bullets 4 and 15

23

Question:
Question Set 1, # 328 and # 341:

The Question and Answer responses issued by the Department on February 23, 2004, in 

response to RFP MED-04-034 indicate that the Workflow Process Management system 

will be used by all Enterprise vendors.  

a.
Will this call tracking system track and report statistical data only (e.g., number of 

calls, length of calls, abandonment rates, etc.) or will this system also track information 

specific to the individual call (e.g., recipient or provider ID, purpose of call, notes from 

call, call disposition, etc.)

Response:
The contractor should identify in its proposal the data it will need to collect and report so 

that these items can be included in the design for the WPM and the telephone system 

that will be developed  during the start-up phase.

SET 5

RFP Section
6.1.4.1.1, bullet 4
p.
299
Planning Task Activities

10

Question:
Question Set 1, # 281:

(1) This response appears to conflict with the response to question 288, which indicates 

that “Final decision of software has not been made.” Please clarify. 

(2) If Microsoft Project 2002 is used, will it be the standalone version or the Server version?

Response:
Final decision of software has not been made.
Iowa Medicaid Enterprise
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AMENDMENT 2

	RFP:               
	Iowa Medical Enterprise Medical Services with Preferred Drug List

	BIDDER:                
	

	Grading Scale:      
	Poor
       = 0

Adequate       = 1
Good
       = 2
Excellent
       = 3
	Score = Points X Scale

	Section
	Points
	FirST
	Second

	
	
	Scale
	Score
	scale
	score

	Executive Summary
	50
	
	
	
	

	Project Understanding
	50
	
	
	
	

	Services Overview
	100
	
	
	
	

	General Requirements
	50
	
	
	
	

	Start-Up Activities
	50
	
	
	
	

	Operational Requirements
	600
	
	
	
	

	Project Management Planning
	350
	
	
	
	

	Corporate Experience & Qualifications
	150
	
	
	
	

	Total  (Technical Proposal)
	1400
	
	
	
	


Iowa Medicaid Enterprise

Medical Services with Preferred Drug List

MED-04-034

ATTACHMENT 1

	FY
	Number of Rxs
	Percent
	
	Total Dollars
	Percent
	Average Monthly
	Percent

	
	
	Change
	
	
	Change
	Medicaid Eligibles*
	Change

	FY '95
	4,138,537
	
	
	$96,623,472 
	
	                  233,160 
	

	FY '96
	4,315,284
	4.3%
	
	$107,825,775 
	11.6%
	                  228,081 
	-2.2%

	FY '97
	4,479,049
	3.8%
	
	$123,375,747 
	14.4%
	                  222,391 
	-2.5%

	FY '98
	4,738,307
	5.8%
	
	$142,633,168 
	15.6%
	                  211,429 
	-4.9%

	FY '99
	4,814,281
	1.6%
	
	$166,798,591 
	16.9%
	                  208,061 
	-1.6%

	FY '00
	4,968,844
	3.2%
	
	$190,729,289 
	14.3%
	                  208,625 
	0.3%

	FY '01
	5,037,219
	1.4%
	
	$225,322,393 
	18.1%
	                  220,116 
	5.5%

	FY '02
	5,505,732
	9.3%
	
	$267,150,629 
	18.6%
	                  245,781 
	11.7%

	FY '03
	6,183,507
	12.3%
	
	$325,978,009 
	22.0%
	                  263,690 
	7.3%

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	FY
	Drug Product
	Percent of
	Percent
	
	Pharmacist
	Percent of
	Percent

	
	Cost
	Total
	Change
	
	Fees
	Total
	Change

	FY '95
	$78,303,298 
	81%
	
	
	$18,320,174 
	19%
	

	FY '96
	$88,690,415 
	82%
	13.3%
	
	$19,135,360 
	18%
	4.4%

	FY '97
	$103,405,743 
	84%
	16.6%
	
	$19,970,004 
	16%
	4.4%

	FY '98
	$121,235,768 
	91%
	17.2%
	
	$21,397,401 
	9%
	7.1%

	FY '99
	$143,338,734 
	92%
	18.2%
	
	$23,459,857 
	8%
	9.6%

	FY '00
	$163,705,358 
	93%
	14.2%
	
	$27,023,931 
	7%
	15.2%

	FY '01
	$196,779,347 
	87%
	20.2%
	
	$28,543,046 
	13%
	5.6%

	FY '02
	$238,163,658 
	89%
	21.0%
	
	$28,986,971 
	11%
	1.6%

	FY '03
	$293,820,020 
	90%
	23.4%
	
	$32,157,989 
	10%
	10.9%

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	FY
	Avg. Cost per Rx
	Percent
	Avg. Total Cost
	Percent
	Avg. Number of
	Percent

	
	Dispensing Fee
	Product Cost
	Change
	Per Eligible
	Change
	Rxs per Eligible
	Change

	FY '95
	$4.43 
	$18.92 
	
	 $          414.41 
	
	                     17.75 
	

	FY '96
	$4.43 
	$20.55 
	8.6%
	 $          472.75 
	14.1%
	                     18.92 
	6.6%

	FY '97
	$4.46 
	$23.09 
	12.3%
	 $          554.77 
	17.3%
	                     20.14 
	6.5%

	FY '98
	$4.52 
	$25.59 
	10.8%
	 $          674.61 
	21.6%
	                     22.41 
	11.3%

	FY '99
	$4.87 
	$29.77 
	16.4%
	 $          801.68 
	18.8%
	                     23.14 
	3.2%

	FY '00
	$5.44 
	$32.95 
	10.7%
	 $          914.22 
	14.0%
	                     23.82 
	2.9%

	FY '01
	$5.67 
	$39.07 
	18.6%
	 $        1,023.65 
	12.0%
	                     22.88 
	-3.9%

	FY '02
	$5.26 
	$43.26 
	10.7%
	 $        1,086.95 
	6.2%
	                     22.40 
	-2.1%

	FY '03
	$5.20 
	$47.52 
	9.8%
	 $        1,236.22 
	13.7%
	                     23.45 
	4.7%

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	FY
	Drug Rebates
	Percent
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Change
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '95
	 $       17,176,279 
	
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '96
	 $       18,760,507 
	9.2%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '97
	 $       22,116,415 
	17.9%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '98
	 $       24,811,889 
	12.2%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '99
	 $       32,576,383 
	31.3%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '00
	 $       35,281,291 
	8.3%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '01
	 $       43,283,741 
	22.7%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '02
	 $       50,004,407 
	15.5%
	
	
	
	
	

	FY '03
	 $       62,486,548 
	25.0%
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	* Includes Medicaid Expansion children funded with T XXI funds.
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